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Goldman Sachs International ("GSI"), Goldman Sachs (Jersey) Limited ("GSJ"), Goldman, Sachs &
Co. Wertpapier GmbH ("GSW") and Goldman Sachs Bank (Europe) plc ("GSBE", and together with
GSI, GSJ and GSW, the "Issuers" and each an "Issuer") may from time to time issue warrants or other
similar instruments (the "Warrants"), certificates or other similar instruments (the "Certificates" and
together with the Warrants, the "Instruments”) and notes or other similar instruments (the "Notes",
and together with the Warrants and the Certificates, the "Securities") under the programme (the
"Programme") described in this base prospectus (as supplemented or replaced, the "Base
Prospectus") upon the terms and conditions of the Securities described herein as completed, in the case
of each issue of Securities, by final terms (the "Final Terms") to this Base Prospectus. Securities of
any series (a "Series") will, in the circumstances described in the relevant Final Terms, give the holder
(a "Holder") thereof certain rights against the relevant Issuer as described herein and in the relevant
Final Terms, which rights may include the right to have the principal amount of such Securities repaid
by such Issuer at maturity, the right to receive interest based on the principal amount of such Securities
or otherwise, the right to receive a cash amount from the relevant Issuer calculated in accordance with
the relevant Final Terms or the right to receive delivery of a specified asset or assets against payment
of a specified sum, all as more particularly described in the relevant Final Terms.

Application has been made to the Luxembourg Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier (the
"CSSF"), which is the Luxembourg competent authority for the purpose of Directive 2003/71/EC (the
"Prospectus Directive") for approval of this Base Prospectus and relevant implementing measures in
Luxembourg, as a base prospectus issued in compliance with the Prospectus Directive and relevant
implementing measures in Luxembourg for the purpose of giving information with regard to the issue
of Securities under the Programme on and during the period of twelve months after the date hereof.
This prospectus constitutes four Base Prospectuses for the purpose of Article 5.4 of the Prospectus
Directive. Application has also been made to the Luxembourg Stock Exchange (the "Luxembourg
Stock Exchange") for Securities issued under the Programme to be listed on the Official List of the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange and admitted to trading on the regulated market of the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange (a regulated market for the purposes of Directive 2004/39/EC on Markets in Financial
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Instruments). GSBE will not offer Securities to the public or request to admit to trading any Securities
on any regulated market until such time as it has prepared audited financial statements and incorporated
those financial statements into this Base Prospectus by way of Supplement hereto.

Any person (an "Investor") intending to acquire or acquiring any securities from any person (an
"Offeror") should be aware that, in the context of an offer of securities to the public as defined in
Article 2(1)(d) of the Prospectus Directive, the Issuers may be responsible to the Investor for the Base
Prospectus under Article 6 of the Prospectus Directive (and relevant implementing legislation in each
Member State) only if the relevant Issuer has authorised that Offeror to make the offer to the Investor.
Each Investor should therefore enquire whether the Offeror is so authorised by the relevant Issuer. If
the Offeror is not authorised by the relevant Issuer, the Investor should check with the Offeror whether
anyone is responsible for the Base Prospectus for the purposes of Article 6 of the Prospectus Directive
(and relevant implementing legislation in each Member State) in the context of the offer to the public,
and, if so, who that person is. If the Investor is in any doubt about whether it can rely on the Base
Prospectus and/or who is responsible for its contents it should take legal advice.

The payment and delivery obligations of GSJ only are guaranteed by GSI pursuant to a guarantee dated
24 July 2008 (the "GSI Guarantee"). The payment, delivery and guarantee (where applicable)
obligations of GSI, GSW and GSBE only are guaranteed by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. ("GSG"
and together with GSI, the "Guarantors") pursuant to a guaranty dated 24 July 2008 (the "GSG
Guaranty" and together with the GSI Guarantee, the "Guarantees"). GSG has the right in its sole and
unfettered discretion pursuant to the GSG Guaranty to discharge any obligation to deliver the Physical
Settlement Amount by payment of the Physical Settlement Disruption Amount instead of delivery of
the Deliverable Assets.

None of the Securities, the Guarantees and any securities to be delivered upon exercise or settlement of
the Securities have been, nor will be, registered under the US Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the
"Securities Act"), or any state securities laws and trading in the Securities has not been and will not be
approved by the United States Commodity Futures Trading Commission (the "CFTC") under the
United States Commodity Exchange Act of 1936, as amended (the "Commodity Exchange Act").
Securities may not be offered, sold or delivered within the United States or to U.S. persons (as defined
in Regulation S under the Securities Act), except pursuant to an exemption from, or in a transaction not
subject to, the registration requirements of the Securities Act and applicable state securities laws. The
Final Terms relating to an Instrument (but not a Note) may provide for an offer and sale of the whole or
a portion of a Series of Instruments issued by GSI (but not any other Issuer) within the United States
exclusively to qualified institutional buyers ("QIBs") (as defined in Rule 144A under the Securities
Act) in reliance on the exemption provided by Rule 144A under the Securities Act. Each purchaser of
Instruments offered within the United States is hereby notified that the offer and sale of such
Instruments to it is made in reliance upon the exemption from the registration requirements of the
Securities Act provided by Rule 144A and that such Instruments are not transferable except as provided
under "Selling Restrictions" below. Rights arising under the Securities will be exercisable by the
Holder only upon certification as to non-U.S. beneficial ownership, unless the Final Terms relating to
an Instrument expressly provides otherwise in connection with an offering of the Instrument pursuant
to Rule 144A under the Securities Act.

The Securities described in this Base Prospectus do not constitute a collective investment fund for
the purpose of the Collective Investment Funds (Jersey) Law 1988, as amended, on the basis that
they are investment products designed for investors with the requisite knowledge of, and
experience of investing in, such investments, who are capable of fully evaluating the risks
involved in making such investments and who have an asset base sufficiently substantial as to
enable them to sustain any loss that they might suffer as a result of making such investments.
These investments are not regarded by the Jersey Financial Services Commission as suitable
investments for any other type of investor. Any individual intending to invest in any investment
described in this Base Prospectus should consult his or her professional adviser and ensure that
he or she fully understands all the risks associated with making such an investment and has
sufficient financial resources to sustain any loss that may arise from it.

Warrants relating to commodities may not be offered, sold or resold in or into the United States absent
an applicable exemption under the Commodity Exchange Act. Unless otherwise stated in the applicable
Final Terms, such warrants may not be offered, sold or resold in the United States and the Issuers and
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the Guarantors reserve the right not to make payment or delivery in respect of a warrant to a person in
the United States if such payment or delivery would constitute a violation of US law.

INVESTING IN THE SECURITIES INVOLVES CERTAIN RISKS, WHICH INVESTORS
SHOULD ENSURE THEY FULLY UNDERSTAND (SEE "RISK FACTORS" ON PAGES 16
TO 32 OF THIS BASE PROSPECTUS).

This Base Prospectus replaces the Base Prospectus dated 7 August 2007 (as supplemented or replaced).

The date of this Base Prospectus is 24 July 2008



Subject as set out below, each of the Issuers and the Guarantors accepts responsibility for the
information contained in this Base Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge of the Issuers and the
Guarantors (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case) the information
contained in this Base Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to
affect the import of such information. Where information contained in this Base Prospectus has been
sourced from a third party, this information has been accurately reproduced and, so far as the Issuers
and the Guarantors are aware and are able to ascertain from information published by that third party,
no facts have been omitted which would render the reproduced information inaccurate or misleading.
This paragraph should be read in conjunction with the third paragraph on page 2 of this Base
Prospectus (beginning with "Any person (an "Investor")...").

This Base Prospectus should be read and construed together with any supplements hereto and with any
other documents incorporated by reference herein and, in relation to any Securities which are the
subject of Final Terms (as defined herein) should be read and construed together with the relevant Final
Terms. This Base Prospectus may only be used for the purposes for which it has been published.

Neither the Issuers nor the Guarantors intend to provide any post-issuance information or have
authorised the making or provision of any representation or information regarding the Issuers, the
Guarantors or the Securities other than as contained or incorporated by reference in this Base
Prospectus, in any other document prepared in connection with the Programme or any Final Terms or
as expressly approved for such purpose by the Issuers or the Guarantors. Any such representation or
information should not be relied upon as having been authorised by the Issuers or the Guarantors.
Neither the delivery of this Base Prospectus nor the delivery of any Final Terms shall, in any
circumstances, create any implication that there has been no adverse change in the financial situation of
the Issuers or the Guarantors since the date hereof or, as the case may be, the date upon which this Base
Prospectus has been most recently supplemented.

The distribution of this Base Prospectus and any Final Terms and the offering, sale and delivery of the
Securities in certain jurisdictions may be restricted by law. Persons into whose possession this Base
Prospectus or any Final Terms comes are required by the Issuers and the Guarantors to inform
themselves about and to observe any such restrictions. For a description of certain restrictions on
offers, sales and deliveries of Securities and the distribution of this Base Prospectus, any Final Terms
and other offering material relating to the Securities see "Selling Restrictions" below.

Neither this Base Prospectus nor any Final Terms may be used for the purpose of an offer or
solicitation by anyone in any jurisdiction in which such offer or solicitation is not authorised or to any
person to whom it is unlawful to make such offer or solicitation, and no action has been taken or will
be taken to permit an offering of the Securities or the distribution of this Base Prospectus in any
jurisdiction where any such action is required.

The Securities have not been approved or disapproved by the Securities and Exchange Commission or
any state securities commission in the United States nor has the Securities and Exchange Commission
or any state securities commission passed upon the accuracy or the adequacy of this Base Prospectus.
Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offence in the United States.

An Investor intending to acquire or acquiring any Securities from an Offeror will do so, and offers and
sales of the Securities to an Investor by an Offeror will be made, in accordance with any terms and
other arrangements in place between such Offeror and such Investor including as to price, allocations
and settlement arrangements. The Issuers will not be a party to any such arrangements with Investors in
connection with the offer or sale of the Securities and, accordingly, this Base Prospectus and any Final
Terms will not contain such information and an Investor must obtain such information from the
Offeror.

A copy of this Base Prospectus has been delivered to the Registrar of Companies in accordance with
Article 5 of the Companies (General Provisions) (Jersey) Order 2002, and he has given, and has not
withdrawn, his consent to its circulation. The Jersey Financial Services Commission has given, and
has not withdrawn, its consent under Article 4 of the Control of Borrowing (Jersey) Order, 1958 as
amended to the issue of the Securities by GSJ. The Jersey Financial Services Commission is protected
by the Control of Borrowing (Jersey) Law, 1947, as amended, against liability arising from the
discharge of its functions under that law. It must be distinctly understood that, in giving these
consents, neither the Registrar of Companies nor the Jersey Financial Services Commission takes any
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responsibility for the financial soundness of GSJ or for the correctness of any statements made, or
opinions expressed, with regard to it.

In this Base Prospectus references to "U.S.$", "US$", "$", "U.S. dollars", "dollars" and "cents" are to
the lawful currency of the United States of America and references to "€", "euro" and "EUR" are to the
single currency introduced at the start of the third stage of European Economic Monetary Union
pursuant to the Treaty establishing the European Community, as amended. Any other currency
referred to in any Final Terms will have the meaning specified in the relevant Final Terms.

In this Base Prospectus, references to the "Conditions" are: (1) in relation to Instruments, references to
the General Instrument Conditions (as completed, amended and/or replaced by any of the Specific
Product Provisions (if applicable)) set out below in this Base Prospectus and, in relation to any
particular Tranche or Tranches of Instruments, references to such General Instrument Conditions (as
completed, amended and/or replaced by any of the Specific Product Provisions (if applicable)) as
completed and (if applicable) amended to the extent described in the relevant Final Terms; and (2) in
relation to Notes, references to the General Note Conditions (as completed, amended and/or replaced
by any of the Specific Product Provisions (if applicable)) set out below in this Base Prospectus and, in
relation to any particular Tranche or Tranches of Notes, references to such General Note Conditions (as
completed, amended and/or replaced by any of the Specific Product Provisions (if applicable)) as
completed and (if applicable) amended to the extent described in the relevant Final Terms.

In connection with the issue of any Tranche of Notes, the person or persons (if any) named as the
Stabilising Manager(s) (or persons acting on behalf of any Stabilising Manager(s)) in the relevant
Final Terms may over-allot Notes or effect transactions with a view to supporting the market
price of the Notes at a level higher than that which might otherwise prevail. However, there is no
assurance that the Stabilising Manager(s) (or persons acting on behalf of a Stabilising Manager)
will undertake stabilisation action. Any stabilisation action may begin on or after the date on
which adequate public disclosure of the terms of the offer of the relevant Tranche of Notes is
made and, if begun, may be ended at any time, but it must end no later than the earlier of 30 days
after the issue date of the relevant Tranche of Notes and 60 days after the date of the allotment of
the relevant Tranche of Notes. Any stabilisation action or over-allotment must be conducted by
the relevant Stabilising Manager(s) (or person(s) acting on behalf of any Stabilising Manager(s))
in accordance with all applicable laws and rules.

On the approval of this Base Prospectus as a Base Prospectus for the purpose of Article 5.4 of the
Prospectus Directive by the CSSF, notification of such approval will be made to the competent
authorities of Austria, Belgium, the Czech Republic, Denmark, Finland, France, Germany, Hungary,
Ireland, Italy, The Netherlands, Norway, Poland, Slovakia, Spain, Sweden and the United Kingdom.

An Index of Defined Terms is set out on pages 386 to 396 of this Base Prospectus.
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Summary of the Programme

SUMMARY OF THE PROGRAMME

The following summary (the "Summary") should be read as an introduction to the Base Prospectus
and is qualified in its entirety by the more detailed information appearing elsewhere in the Base
Prospectus. Any decision to invest in the Securities should be based on consideration of the Base
Prospectus as a whole by the investor. Where a claim relating to the information contained in the Base
Prospectus is brought before a court, the plaintiff investor might, under the national legislation of the
relevant EEA Member State, have to bear the costs of translating the Base Prospectus before the legal
proceedings are initiated. Civil liability attaches to the persons who are responsible for the Summary
but only if the Summary is misleading, inaccurate or inconsistent when read together with the other
parts of the Base Prospectus. Terms used in this Summary but not defined have the meanings given to
them elsewhere in the Base Prospectus.

Issuers:

Goldman Sachs International ("'GSI'").

GSI is an English company formed on 2 June 1988 and is successor
to a company formed in 1966. GSI was re-registered as a private
unlimited liability company in England and Wales with the
Registrar of Companies on 25 February 1994 (registration number
02263951), having previously been registered as a limited liability
company under the name "Goldman Sachs International Limited".

GSI is a leading international investment banking organisation. Its
activities and sources of revenue include and are derived from
securities underwriting and distribution; trading of corporate debt
and equity securities, non-U.S. sovereign debt and mortgage
securities; execution of swaps and derivative instruments; mergers
and acquisitions; financial advisory services for restructurings,
private placements and lease and project financings; real estate
brokerage and finance; merchant banking and stock brokerage and
research. Services are provided worldwide to a substantial and
diversified client base which includes corporations, financial
institutions, governments and individual investors.

Goldman Sachs (Jersey) Limited ("'GSJ"").

GSJ was incorporated as a public company with limited liability
under the laws of Jersey on 12 March 2003 with company
registration number 84992. The business of GSJ includes issuing
Securities, entering into the agreements and arrangements
contemplated in this Base Prospectus and exercising the rights and
performing the obligations under each such agreement and
arrangement and other transactions incidental thereto.

Goldman, Sachs & Co. Wertpapier GmbH ("GSW").

GSW was established on 6 November 1991 under the laws of the
Federal Republic of Germany. It is a company with limited liability
and has been established for an unlimited period of time.

GSW was established for the purpose of issuing securities, in
particular warrants. It has also been issuing certificates and
structured notes. GSW primarily operates on a national level in the
Federal Republic of Germany.

Goldman Sachs Bank (Europe) plc (""GSBE").

GSBE was incorporated as a public company with limited liability
under the laws of Ireland on 22 May 2007 with company
registration number 440142. The business of GSBE is of a
commercial and investment bank and carrying on banking business



Guarantors:

Risk Factors relating to the
Issuers and Guarantors

Fiscal Agent:

Summary of the Programme

and providing financial services (amongst other things).

Goldman Sachs International in respect of Securities issued by
GSJ.

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. ("GSG'") in respect of Securities
issued by GSW, GSBE and issued or guaranteed by GSI.

GSG together with its consolidated subsidiaries ("Goldman Sachs")
is a leading global investment banking, securities and investment
management firm that provides a wide range of services worldwide
to a substantial and diversified client base that includes
corporations, financial institutions, governments and high-net-worth
individuals.

Goldman Sachs' activities are divided into three segments:

1) Investment Banking: Goldman Sachs provides a broad
range of investment banking services to a diverse group of
corporations, financial institutions, investment funds,
governments and individuals.

2) Trading and Principal Investments: Goldman Sachs
facilitates client transactions with a diverse group of
corporations, financial institutions, investment funds,
governments and individuals and takes proprietary
positions through market making in, trading of and
investing in fixed income and equity products, currencies,
commodities and derivatives on these products. In addition,
Goldman Sachs engages in specialist and market making
activities on equities and options exchanges and clears
client transactions on major stock, options and futures
exchanges worldwide. In connection with its investment
banking and other investment activities, Goldman Sachs
makes principal investments directly and through funds
that the firm raises and manages.

3) Asset Management and Securities Services: Goldman
Sachs provides investment advisory and financial planning
services and offers investment products (primarily through
separate accounts and funds) to a diverse group of
institutions and individuals worldwide, and provides prime
brokerage services, financing services and securities
lending services to institutional clients, including hedge
funds, mutual funds, pension funds and foundations, and to
high-net-worth individuals worldwide.

The Issuers are part of the Goldman Sachs Group of companies and
may be affected by uncertain or unfavourable economic, market,
legal and other conditions that are likely to affect the Goldman
Sachs Group of companies as a whole, including GSG's ability to
perform its payment obligations as a Guarantor. The risks relating to
GSG can be found on pages 21 to 31 in "Risk Factors" in Part I,
Item 1A of GSG's Form 10-K, which is incorporated by reference.

The above is a summary only: see "Risk Factors" below.

Citibank, N.A., London Branch.
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Transfer Agents:

Finnish Paying Agent:

Swedish Paying Agent:

Norwegian Paying Agent:

Luxembourg Paying Agent:
French Paying Agent:

Registrar (Notes):

Principal Programme Agent:

Registrar (Instruments):

Finnish Programme Agent:

Swedish Programme Agent:

Norwegian Programme
Agent:

CREST Programme Agent
and CREST Registrar:

Italian Programme Agent:
French Programme Agent:

Luxembourg Programme
Agent:

London Authentication
Agent:

Calculation Agent:

Method of Issue:

Issue Price:

Summary of the Programme

Citibank, N.A., London Branch and Dexia Banque Internationale a
Luxembourg, société anonyme.

Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB (publ) (Custody Services)
Finland.

Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB (publ) (Custody Services)
Sweden.

Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB (publ) (Custody Services)
Norway.

Dexia Banque Internationale & Luxembourg, société anonyme.
BNP Paribas Securities Services.

Citigroup Global Markets Deutschland AG & Co. KGaA.
Citigroup Global Markets Deutschland AG & Co. KGaA.
Goldman Sachs Japan Co., Ltd.

Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB (publ) (Custody Services)
Finland.

Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB (publ) (Custody Services)
Sweden.

Skandinaviska Enskilda Banken AB (publ) (Custody Services)
Norway.

Equiniti Limited.

Citibank, N.A.
BNP Paribas Securities Services.

Dexia Banque Internationale & Luxembourg, société anonyme.

Citibank, N.A., London Branch.

Goldman Sachs International.

The Securities will be issued in series (each, a "Series"). Each
Series may comprise one or more tranches (each, a "Tranche")
issued on the same or different issue dates. Each Tranche shall be
issued pursuant to this Base Prospectus and associated Final Terms
prepared in connection with a particular Tranche or Tranches of
Securities. Such Final Terms will, for the purposes of that Tranche
or Tranches only, complete and (if applicable) amend the General
Instrument Conditions or General Note Conditions, as applicable (as
completed, amended and/or replaced by any of the Specific Product
Provisions (if applicable)) as set forth in this Base Prospectus and
must be read in conjunction with this Base Prospectus.

Securities may be issued at any issue price. The issue price will be
specified in the relevant Final Terms.
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Status of the Securities:

Form and Transfer of
Securities:

Summary of the Programme

The Securities will constitute direct, unsubordinated, unconditional
and unsecured obligations of the relevant Issuer and will rank pari
passu among themselves.

Each Tranche of Instruments (other than VPC Registered
Instruments, VPS Registered Instruments, APK Registered
Instruments, CREST Registered Instruments and Monte Titoli
Registered Instruments) will at all times be represented by a global
warrant or a global certificate (in either form, the "Global
Instrument") deposited on the issue date specified in the relevant
Final Terms with, in the case of Instruments held in a Clearing
System (other than the VPC System, the VPS System, the APK
System, CREST and Monte Titoli), a common depositary (which
shall at all times be an entity located outside the United Kingdom)
for Euroclear Bank SA/NV ("Euroclear"), Clearstream Banking,
société anonyme ("Clearstream, Luxembourg") and Euroclear
France (together with Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg, the
VPC System, the VPS System, the APK System, CREST and Monte
Titoli, the "Clearing Systems" and each a "Clearing System") or,
in the case of Non-cleared Instruments, the Registrar.

Notes issued pursuant to the Programme may include APK
registered notes (the "APK Registered Notes") which Notes will be
registered in uncertificated and dematerialised book-entry form with
the Finnish Central Securities Depositary Ltd. (the "APK") in
accordance with all applicable Finnish laws, regulations and rules.
APK Registered Notes will not be issued in definitive form.

Notes issued pursuant to the Programme may include VPS
registered notes (the "VPS Registered Notes"), which Notes will be
registered in uncertificated and dematerialised electronic book-entry
form with the Norwegian Central Securities Depositary (the "VPS")
in accordance with all applicable Norwegian laws, regulations and
rules. VPS Registered Notes will not be issued in definitive form.

Notes issued pursuant to the Programme may include VPC
registered notes (the "VPC Registered Notes"), which Notes will
be registered in uncertificated and dematerialised electronic book-
entry form with VPC AB, the Swedish Central Securities
Depository (the "VPC") in accordance with all applicable Swedish
laws, regulations and rules. VPC Registered Notes will not be
issued in definitive form.

Instruments may be issued and transferred in registered and
uncertificated form through the dematerialised securities trading
systems operated by CRESTCo Limited ("CREST") and Monte
Titoli ("Monte Titoli").

Transfers of Securities which are held in a Clearing System may be
effected only through the Clearing System(s) in which the Securities
to be transferred are held. Title will pass upon registration of the
transfer in the books of the relevant Clearing System(s) and in
accordance with the local laws, regulations and/or rules governing
such Clearing Systems.

Transfers of Non-cleared Instruments, may be effected only through
the Registrar by delivery in writing to the Registrar of a duly
completed Transfer Certificate. Title will pass upon registration of
the transfer in the Register.

12



Maturities of Notes:

Denominations:

Settlement Amount or
Redemption Amount:

Exercise of Instruments:

Optional Redemption:

Summary of the Programme

Any maturity is subject, in relation to specific currencies, to
compliance with all applicable legal and/or regulatory and/or central
bank requirements.

Any Notes having a maturity of less than one year must (a) have a
minimum redemption value of £100,000 (or its equivalent in other
currencies) and be issued only to persons whose ordinary activities
involve them in acquiring, holding, managing or disposing of
investments (as principal or agent) for the purposes of their
businesses; or who it is reasonable to expect will acquire, hold,
manage or dispose of investments (as principal or agent) for the
purposes of their businesses or (b) be issued in other circumstances
which do not constitute a contravention of section 19 of the
Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (the "FSMA") by the
Issuers.

No Notes may be issued under the Programme which have a
minimum denomination of less than EUR 1,000 (or nearly
equivalent in another currency) and no Securities may be issued
which carry the right to acquire shares (or transferable securities
equivalent to shares) issued by the relevant Issuer (other than GSJ)
or by any entity to whose group such Issuer belongs and which, in
each case, (a) are offered to the public or (b) admitted to trading on
a regulated market in any European Economic Area Member State.
Subject thereto, Securities will be issued in such denominations (if
any) as may be specified in the relevant Final Terms, subject to
compliance with all applicable legal and/or regulatory and/or central
bank requirements.

As set out in the relevant Final Terms each Series of Securities will
entitle the Holder to receive a cash amount ("Settlement Amount")
or physical delivery of the Underlying Assets or Deliverable Assets
("Physical Settlement Amount") from the relevant Issuer or, as the
case may be, the relevant Guarantor calculated in accordance with
the relevant Terms. References in this Base Prospectus to a
"Settlement Amount” or "Redemption Amount" are to the
Settlement Amount and/or the Physical Settlement Amount, as
applicable, and references to the Settlement Amount or Redemption
Amount being payable shall include references to the Physical
Settlement Amount being deliverable.

The Instruments create options exercisable by the relevant Holder.
There is no obligation upon any Holder to exercise his Instruments;
nor, in the absence of such exercise and save where the Instruments
are subject to Automatic Exercise (General Instrument Conditions
7(j) and 7(k)), is there any obligation on the relevant Issuer and
Guarantor to pay any amount in respect of the Instruments.

Upon exercise of any Instruments, unless the Final Terms relating to
such Instruments expressly provides otherwise in connection with
an offering of such Instruments issued by GSI only pursuant to Rule
144A under the Securities Act, the Holders will be required to
certify that the Instruments are not being exercised by or on behalf
of a U.S. person or person within the United States and that the
Instruments are not beneficially owned by a U.S. person or person
within the United States.

Securities may be redeemed before their stated maturity, in the case
of the Instruments, at the option of the relevant Issuer (in whole but
not in part) and, in the case of the Notes, at the option of the
relevant Issuer (either in whole or in part) and/or the Noteholders, in
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Guarantees:

Underlying Assets:

Disruption Events:

Adjustments or Early
Termination due to
Underlying Asset Events:

Illegality:

Taxation:

Summary of the Programme

each case, the extent (if at all) specified in the relevant Final Terms.

The payment and delivery obligations of GSJ, in respect of
Securities issued by GSJ only, are unconditionally and irrevocably
guaranteed by GSI in its capacity as guarantor pursuant to a
guarantee dated 24 July 2008 made by GSI (the "GSI Guarantee").
In addition, the payment and delivery obligations of GSW and
GSBE, in respect of Securities issued by GSW and GSBE, and the
payment and delivery obligations of GSI, in respect of Securities
issued by GSI and/or pursuant to the GSI Guarantee, are
unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by GSG pursuant to a
guaranty dated 24 July 2008 made by GSG (the "GSG Guaranty"
and, together with the GSI Guarantee, the "Guarantees"). GSG has
the right in its sole and unfettered discretion pursuant to the GSG
Guaranty to discharge any obligation to deliver the Physical
Settlement Amount by payment of the Physical Settlement
Disruption Amount instead of delivery of the Deliverable Assets.

The interest and/or repayment terms of the Securities issued under
this Programme may be linked to a number of different underlying
assets, which may include: one or more shares, share indices,
commodities, commodity indices, commodity strategies, foreign
exchange rates, funds, consumer price or other inflation indices, any
other financial, economic or other measures or instruments
including the occurrence or non-occurrence of any event or
circumstance and credit events relating to one or more issuers or
securities and any combination of any of such assets.

If the Calculation Agent determines that a Physical Settlement
Disruption Event, FX Disruption Event, Market Disruption Event or
other Disruption Event has occurred, any consequential
postponement of or any alternative provisions for valuation
provided in any Securities may have an adverse effect on the value
of such Securities.

Depending on the relevant Underlying Asset(s), following certain
events as set forth in the relevant Specific Product Provisions (such
as, for example, Potential Adjustment Events, Extraordinary Events,
Index Adjustment Events, Commodity Index Adjustment Events
and Adjustment Events, as may be applicable depending on the
relevant Underlying Asset(s)) the Calculation Agent may adjust the
terms and conditions of the Securities (without obtaining the prior
consent of the Holders) and/or procure the early termination or
redemption of the relevant Securities, all subject to and in
accordance with the terms set forth in the relevant Specific Product
Provisions.

If the relevant Issuer determines in its sole and absolute discretion
that its performance under any Securities has become unlawful or
impractical in whole or in part for any reason, such Issuer may
cancel such Securities and, if permitted by applicable law, pay the
Holder of each such Securities an amount equal to the Non-
Scheduled Early Repayment Amount of such Securities
notwithstanding such illegality.

Unless otherwise set out in the relevant Final Terms, Holders will be
liable for any taxes, including withholding tax, arising in connection
with the Securities and neither the relevant Issuer nor the relevant
Guarantor shall have any obligation to pay any additional amounts
in respect thereof.
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Listing and Admission to
Trading:

Governing Law:

Selling Restrictions:

Risk Factors relating to the
Securities:

Potential conflicts of interest:

Summary of the Programme

If so specified in the relevant Final Terms application may be made
for Securities issued under the Programme to be listed on the
Official List of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and admitted to
trading on the regulated market of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange.
Securities may also be listed on any other stock exchange or may be
unlisted. The relevant Final Terms in respect of any Series of
Securities will specify the exchange, if any, on which such
Securities will be listed. The relevant Issuer is under no obligation
to maintain a listing of the Securities.

The Securities will be created under and governed by English Law.
The GSI Guarantee will be governed by and construed in
accordance with English Law. The GSG Guaranty will be governed
by and construed in accordance with New York law.

There are restrictions on the sale of Securities and the distribution of
the offering material in certain jurisdictions, including the United
States and Jersey (see "Selling Restrictions" below). Further
restrictions, including restrictions on transfer, may be required in
connection with any particular Tranche of Securities and will be set
out in the relevant Final Terms.

Depending on the terms and conditions of the relevant
Securities, investors may lose some or all of their investment on
final and/or early redemption. Investors may also lose some or all
of their investment if the Securities are not held to maturity by the
investor and/or if the terms of the securities are adjusted in a
materially adverse way (in accordance with the terms and conditions
of the Securities) and/or if the Issuer and Guarantor default on their
obligations.

The performance of the relevant Securities will be dependent on the
performance of the Underlying Asset(s).

No person should invest in Securities unless that person understands
the terms and conditions of the Securities and, in particular, the
extent of the exposure to potential loss, together with the
characteristics and risks in inherent in the relevant Underlying
Assets(s) and the relevant Issuer and Guarantor. Prospective
purchasers should reach an investment decision only after careful
consideration, with their advisers of the suitability of such Securities
in the light of their particular financial circumstances and
investment objectives and risk profile, all information set forth
herein, the information regarding the relevant Securities set out in
the applicable Final Terms and the particular Underlying Asset(s) to
which the value of the relevant Securities may relate. Prospective
purchasers of Securities should consult their own legal, tax,
accountancy and other professional advisers to assist them in
determining the suitability of the Securities for them as an
investment or if they are in any doubt about the contents of this
Base Prospectus and any related Final Terms.

Prospective investors should read "Risk Factors" below.

Goldman Sachs entities are subject to certain conflicts of interest
between their own interests and those of Holders of Securities. See
"Conflicts of Interest" below.
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Risk Factors

RISK FACTORS

The risk factors herein are organised into the following sub-sections below:

1.

2.

11

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

1.2

Risks relating to loss of investment and suitability of Securities

Risks associated with all Securities

Risks associated with Securities that include certain features

Risks associated with Securities that reference one or more Underlying Asset(s)

Risks associated with the creditworthiness of the Issuers and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.
as the Guarantor

Risks associated with conflicts of interest between Goldman Sachs and purchasers of
Securities

Risks relating to loss of investment and suitability of Securities
Purchasers of Securities may receive back less than the original invested amount

PURCHASERS OF SECURITIES MAY LOSE THE VALUE OF THEIR ENTIRE
INVESTMENT OR PART OF IT, AS THE CASE MAY BE, TOGETHER WITH ANY
TRANSACTION COSTS INCURRED, AS A RESULT OF THE OCCURRENCE OF
ANY ONE OF THE FOLLOWING EVENTS:

THE SECURITIES DO NOT PROVIDE FOR FULL REPAYMENT OF A
PURCHASER'S INITIAL INVESTMENT UPON MATURITY AND/OR
MANDATORY EARLY REDEMPTION OF SUCH SECURITIES AND SUCH
SECURITIES MAY BECOME WORTHLESS DEPENDING UPON THE
PERFORMANCE OF THE UNDERLYING ASSET(S);

THE SECURITIES ARE SOLD BY THE PURCHASER PRIOR TO THE
SCHEDULED MATURITY OF SUCH SECURITIES FOR AN AMOUNT LESS THAN
THE PURCHASER'S INITIAL INVESTMENT;

THE SECURITIES ARE SUBJECT TO CERTAIN ADJUSTMENTS IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH SECURITIES
THAT MAY RESULT IN THE SCHEDULED AMOUNT TO BE PAID OR ASSET(S)
TO BE DELIVERED UPON REDEMPTION BEING REDUCED TO OR BEING
VALUED AT AN AMOUNT LESS THAN A PURCHASER'S INITIAL INVESTMENT;
OR

THE BANKRUPTCY OR INSOLVENCY OF THE ISSUER AND/OR THE
GUARANTOR OR OTHER EVENTS ADVERSELY AFFECTING THE ISSUER'S OR
THE GUARANTOR'S ABILITY TO MEET ITS PAYMENT AND OTHER
OBLIGATIONS UNDER THE SECURITIES.

Suitability of Securities for purchase

Before purchasing Securities, each purchaser must ensure that the nature, complexity and risks
inherent in the Securities are suitable for his or her objectives in the light of his or her
circumstances and financial position. No person should purchase the Securities unless that
person understands the extent of that person's exposure to potential loss. Each prospective
purchaser of Securities should consult his or her own legal, tax, accountancy, regulatory,
investment or other professional advisers to assist them in determining whether the Securities
are a suitable investment for them or to clarify any doubt about the contents of the Base
Prospectus (including for the avoidance of doubt, each document incorporated by reference in
the Base Prospectus) and the relevant Final Terms.
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2.2

2.3

Risk Factors

Neither the Issuer nor the Guarantor has given, and does not give, to any prospective purchaser
of Securities (either directly or indirectly) any assurance or guarantee as to the merits,
performance or suitability of such Securities to any potential purchaser, and the purchaser
should be aware that the Issuer is acting as an arm's-length contractual counterparty and not as
an advisor or fiduciary.

Risks associated with all Securities
Valuation of the Securities; Inducements and/or commissions and/or fees

Assuming no changes in market conditions and other relevant factors, the value of the
Securities on the date of the Final Terms (as determined by reference to pricing models used
by Goldman Sachs) may be significantly less than the original issue price. In addition,
purchasers of Securities should be aware that the issue price may include inducements and/or
commissions and/or other fees paid by the Issuer to distribution partners as payment for
distribution services. This can cause a difference between the theoretical value of the
Securities and any bid and offer prices quoted by the Issuer, any Goldman Sachs affiliate or
any third party. Such differences may be greater when the Securities are initially traded on any
secondary markets and may gradually decline in value during the term of the Securities.
Information with respect to the amount of these inducements, commissions and fees will be
included in the Final Terms and/or may be obtained from the Issuer upon request.

Limited liquidity of Securities

Unless otherwise communicated by the Issuer or any Goldman Sachs affiliate to the purchaser
of the Securities, or to the extent that the rules of any stock exchange on which the Securities
are listed and admitted to trading require the Issuer or any Goldman Sachs affiliate to provide
liquidity in respect of such Securities, the Securities may have no liquidity or the market for
such Securities may be limited and this may adversely impact their value or the ability of the
purchaser of Securities to dispose of them.

A secondary market is unlikely to develop and, even if a secondary market does develop, it is
not possible to predict the price at which Securities will trade in such secondary market.
Neither the Issuer nor any Goldman Sachs affiliate is under an obligation, and neither the
Issuer nor any Goldman Sachs affiliate makes any commitment, to make a market in or to
repurchase the Securities. If the Issuer or any Goldman Sachs affiliate does make a market for
the Securities, it may cease to do so at any time without notice.

Price discrepancies in secondary market

The value or quoted price of the Securities at any time will reflect many factors and cannot be
predicted, and if a purchaser sells his or her Security prior to its maturity, such purchaser may
receive less than its issue price. Such factors, most of which are beyond the control of
Goldman Sachs, will influence the market price of the Securities, and will include national and
international economic, financial, regulatory, political, terrorist, military and other events that
affect securities generally, interest and yield rates in the market, the time remaining until the
Securities mature, the creditworthiness of the Issuer and the Guarantor, and, if applicable, the
performance of any Underlying Asset. If the Issuer or any Goldman Sachs affiliate does make
a market in the Securities, the price quoted by such Goldman Sachs entity for the Securities
would reflect any changes in market conditions and other relevant factors, and the quoted price
could be higher or lower than the original issue price, and may be higher or lower than the
value of the Securities as determined by reference to pricing models used by Goldman Sachs.

If at any time a third party dealer quotes a price to purchase the Securities or otherwise values
the Securities, that price may be significantly different (higher or lower) than any price quoted
by any Goldman Sachs affiliate. Furthermore, if any purchaser sells their Securities, the
purchaser will likely be charged a commission for secondary market transactions, or the price
will likely reflect a dealer discount.
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2.5

2.6

3.1

3.2

33

Risk Factors

Illegality, Early Termination and Reinvestment Risk

If the Issuer determines that its performance under the Securities has become unlawful or
impractical in whole or in part for any reason, the Issuer may cancel such Securities and, if
permitted by applicable law, pay the purchaser of such Securities an amount equal to the non-
scheduled early repayment amount of such Securities notwithstanding such illegality, as
determined by the Calculation Agent in its sole and absolute discretion. A purchaser of
Securities should be aware that this non-scheduled early repayment amount may be less than
the purchaser's initial investment, and in such case see risk factor, "I.I Purchasers of
Securities may receive back less than the original invested amount". Following any such early
termination of Securities, the purchasers of such Securities may not be able to reinvest the
redemption proceeds at any effective interest rate as high as the interest rate or yield on the
Securities being redeemed and may only be able to do so at a significantly lower rate.
Purchasers of Securities should consider reinvestment risk in light of other investments
available at that time.

Amendments to the Securities bind all holders of Securities

The terms and conditions of the Securities may be amended by the Issuer, in certain
circumstances, with the required consent of a defined majority of the purchasers of such
Securities. The terms and conditions of the Securities contain provisions for purchasers to call
and attend meetings to consider and vote upon matters affecting their interests generally.
Resolutions passed at such meetings can bind all purchasers, including purchasers who did not
attend and vote at the relevant meeting and purchasers who voted in a manner contrary to the
majority.

Substitution of the Issuer

The Issuer may be substituted as principal obligor under such Securities any company from
the Goldman Sachs Group. Whilst the new issuer will provide an indemnity in favour of the
purchasers of such Securities in relation to any additional tax or duties that become payable
solely as a result of such substitution, purchasers will not have the right to consent to such
substitution.

Risks associated with Securities that include certain features
The exercise of Issuer call option in respect of Securities

Where the terms and conditions of the Securities provide that the Issuer has the right to call the
termination of such Securities, following the exercise by the Issuer of such issuer call option, a
purchaser of such Securities will no longer be able to realise his or her expectations for a gain
in the value of such Securities and, if applicable, will no longer participate in the performance
of the Underlying Assets.

No exercise

Where the terms and conditions of the Securities provide that the Securities must be exercised
in order for the purchasers of the Securities to receive their settlement amount in respect of
such Securities, and the Securities are not designated as "Automatic Exercise Instruments”, the
purchasers of such Securities must exercise their rights to receive payment in accordance with
the terms and conditions of such Securities and the relevant clearing systems or the registrar,
as applicable, otherwise they may lose their initial investment, in which case see risk factor,
"1.1 Purchasers of Securities may receive back less than the original invested amount".

Time lag after exercise

Where the terms and conditions of the Securities provide that the Securities are to be
exercised, there will be a time lag between the time a purchaser of such Securities gives
instructions to exercise and the time the applicable settlement amount relating to such exercise
is determined. Any such delay between the time of exercise and the determination of the
settlement amount could be significantly longer, particularly in the case of a delay in exercise
of Securities arising from any daily maximum exercise limitation, or following the imposition
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3.5

4.1

4.2

4.3

44

Risk Factors

of any exchange controls, other similar regulations affecting the ability to obtain or exchange
any relevant currency (or basket of currencies). The applicable settlement amount may change
significantly during any such period, and such movement or movements could decrease the
settlement amount in respect of the Securities being exercised and may result in such
Settlement Amount being zero, in which case see risk factor, "I.1 Purchasers of Securities
may receive back less than the original invested amount".

Limitations on exercise (minimum)

Where the terms and conditions of the Securities provide that a purchaser must tender a
specified minimum number of Securities and integral multiples of Securities thereafter at any
one time in order to exercise, purchasers with fewer than the specified minimum number of
Securities or specified multiples thereof will either have to sell their Securities or purchase
additional Securities, incurring transaction costs in each case, in order to realise their
investment. Furthermore, purchasers of such Securities incur the risk that there may be
differences between the trading price of such Securities and the Settlement Amount of such
Securities.

Limitations on exercise (maximum)

Where the terms and conditions of the Securities provide that the maximum number of
Securities exercisable in aggregate, and by any person, on any date are limited, in the event
that the total number of Securities being exercised on any date exceeds such maximum
number, a purchaser may not be able to exercise on such date all Securities that he or she
desires to exercise. Securities to be exercised on such date will be selected at the discretion of
the Issuer and the Securities tendered for exercise but not exercised on such date will be
automatically exercised on the next date on which Securities may be exercised, subject to the
same daily maximum limitation and delayed exercise provisions.

Risks associated with Securities that reference one or more Underlying Asset(s)
Performance of the Securities is linked to the performance of the Underlying Asset(s)

Where the Securities reference one or more Underlying Assets, the purchasers of such
Securities are exposed to the performance of such Underlying Assets. The price, performance
or investment return of the Underlying Asset may be subject to unpredictable change over
time and this degree of change is known as "volatility". The volatility of an Underlying Asset
may be affected by national and international financial, political, military or economic events,
including governmental actions, or by the activities of participants in the relevant markets.
Any of these events or activities could adversely affect the value of the Securities. Volatility
does not imply direction of the price, performance or investment returns, though an
Underlying Asset that is more volatile is likely to increase or decrease in value more often
and/or to a greater extent than one that is less volatile.

Past performance of an Underlying Asset is not indicative of future performance

Any information about the past performance of the Underlying Asset at the time of the
issuance of the Security should not be regarded as indicative of the range of, or trends in,
fluctuations in the Underlying Asset that may occur in the future.

No rights of ownership in the Underlying Asset(s)

The purchasers of Securities should be aware that the relevant Underlying Asset(s) will not be
held by the Issuer for the benefit of the purchasers of such Securities, and as such, purchasers
will not obtain any rights of ownership, including, without limitation, any voting rights, any
rights to receive dividends or other distributions or any other rights with respect to any
Underlying Asset referenced by such Securities.

Postponement or alternative provisions for valuation of Underlying Asset

If the Calculation Agent determines that any form of disruption event in relation to the
Underlying Asset has occurred which affects the valuation of such Underlying Asset, the
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Calculation Agent may apply any consequential postponement of, or any alternative
provisions for, valuation of such Underlying Asset provided in the terms and conditions of the
Securities, including a determination of the value of such Underlying Asset by the Calculation
Agent in its discretion, acting in good faith and in a commercially reasonable manner, each of
which may have an adverse effect on the value of the Securities. In the event that the
valuation day of the Underlying Asset is postponed, the maturity date on which cash
settlement or physical delivery is made will be postponed.

Calculation Agent determination in respect of the Underlying Asset(s), adjustment to or
early termination of the Securities and reinvestment risk following such early termination

If the Calculation Agent determines that any form of adjustment event in relation to the
Underlying Asset has occurred, the Calculation Agent may adjust the terms and conditions of
the Securities (without the consent of the purchasers) or may procure the early termination of
such Securities prior to their scheduled maturity date, in each case, in accordance with such
terms and conditions. In the event of such early termination the Issuer will repay such
Securities at a non-scheduled early repayment amount, which will be determined on the basis
of market quotations obtained from qualified financial institutions, or where insufficient
market quotations are obtained, at an amount determined by the Calculation Agent equal to the
fair market value of such Securities immediately prior (and ignoring the circumstances leading
to) such early redemption. A purchaser of such Securities should be aware that it is likely that
this non-scheduled early repayment amount will be less than the purchaser's initial investment,
and in such case see risk factor, "1.1 Purchasers of Securities may receive back less than the
original invested amount". Following any such early termination of Securities, the purchasers
of such Securities will generally not be able to reinvest the redemption proceeds at any
effective interest rate as high as the interest rate or yield on the Securities being redeemed and
may only be able to do so at a significantly lower rate. Purchasers of Securities should
consider reinvestment risk in light of other investments available at that time.

Emerging markets

Where the terms and conditions of the Securities reference one or more emerging market
Underlying Asset(s), purchasers of such Securities should be aware that the political and
economic situation in countries with emerging economies or stock markets may be undergoing
significant evolution and rapid development, and such countries may lack the social, political
and economic stability characteristics of more developed countries, including a significant risk
of currency value fluctuation. Such instability may result from, among other things,
authoritarian governments, or military involvement in political and economic decision-
making, including changes or attempted changes in governments through extra-constitutional
means; popular unrest associated with demands for improved political, economic or social
conditions; internal insurgencies; hostile relations with neighbouring countries; and ethnic,
religious and racial disaffections or conflict. Certain of such countries may have in the past
failed to recognise private property rights and have at times nationalised or expropriated the
assets of private companies. As a result, the risks from investing in those countries, including
the risks of nationalisation or expropriation of assets, may be heightened. In addition,
unanticipated political or social developments may affect the values of an underlying asset
investment in those countries. The small size and inexperience of the securities markets in
certain countries and the limited volume of trading in securities may make the underlying
assets illiquid and more volatile than investments in more established markets. There may be
little financial or accounting information available with respect to local issuers, and it may be
difficult as a result to assess the value or prospects of the Underlying Assets.

Use of leverage factors over 100 per cent.

Where the terms and conditions of the Securities provide that the redemption amount of such
Securities is based upon the performance of the Underlying Asset is multiplied by a leverage
factor which is over 100 per cent., the purchaser may participate disproportionately in any
positive performance and/or may have a disproportionate exposure to any negative
performance of the Underlying Asset. Due to this leverage effect, the Securities represent a
very speculative and risky form of investment since any loss in the value of the Underlying
Asset carries the risk of a correspondingly higher loss.
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Securities with foreign exchange risks

Where the terms and conditions of the Securities provide that payment under such Securities
will be made in a currency which is different to the currency of the Underlying Asset, and
such Securities do not have a quanto feature, the purchasers of such Securities may be exposed
not only to the performance of the Underlying Asset but also to the performance of such
foreign currency, currency unit or unit of account, which cannot be predicted. Purchasers
should be aware that foreign exchange rates are, and have been, highly volatile and determined
by supply and demand for currencies in the international foreign exchange markets, which are
subject to economic factors, including inflation rates in the countries concerned, interest rate
differences between the respective countries, economic forecasts, international political
factors, currency convertibility and safety of making financial investments in the currency
concerned, speculation and measures taken by governments and central banks (e.g., imposition
of regulatory controls or taxes, issuance of a new currency to replace an existing currency,
alteration of the exchange rate or exchange characteristics by devaluation or revaluation of a
currency or imposition of exchange controls with respect to the exchange or transfer of a
specified currency that would affect exchange rates as well as the availability of a specified
currency). Foreign exchange fluctuations between a purchaser's home currency and the
relevant currency in which the repayment amount of the Securities is denominated may affect
purchasers who intend to convert gains or losses from the exercise or sale of Securities into
their home currency.

Risks associated with Shares as Underlying Assets
Factors affecting the performance of Shares

The performance of Shares is dependent upon macroeconomic factors, such as interest and
price levels on the capital markets, currency developments, political factors as well as
company-specific factors such as earnings position, market position, risk situation, shareholder
structure and distribution policy.

Action by issuer of a Share may adversely affect the Securities

The issuer of a Share will have no involvement in the offer and sale of the Securities and will
have no obligation to any purchaser of such Securities. The issuer of a Share may take any
actions in respect of such Share without regard to the interests of the purchasers of the
Securities, and any of these actions could adversely affect the market value of the Securities.

Potential Adjustment Events, Extraordinary Events and Change in Law

The adjustment events referred to in risk factor, "4.5 Calculation Agent determination in
respect of the Underlying Asset(s), adjustment to or early termination of the Securities and
reinvestment risk following such early termination" include, in respect of Shares, Potential
Adjustment Events, Extraordinary Events and Change in Law. Potential Adjustment Events
include (i) a sub-division, consolidation or re-classification of Shares; (ii) an extraordinary
dividend; (iii) a call of shares that are not fully paid; (iv) a repurchase by the issuer, or an
affiliate thereof, of the Shares; (v) a separation of rights from Shares; or (vi) any event having
a dilutive or concentrative effect on value of Shares. Extraordinary Events include (i) a
delisting of Shares on an exchange; (ii) an insolvency or bankruptcy of the issuer of the
Shares; (iii) a merger event entailing the consolidation of Shares with those of another entity;
(iv) a nationalisation of the issuer of the Shares or transfer of Shares to a governmental entity;
or (v) a tender offer or takeover offer that results in transfer of Shares to another entity. A
Change in Law results in the Issuer incurring material costs for performing its obligations
under the Securities.

Physical delivery of assets in lieu of payment of cash amounts

Where the Securities include the right of the Issuer, subject to the fulfilment of a particular
condition, to redeem the Securities at their maturity by delivering Shares to the purchaser of
such Securities, the purchasers will receive such Shares rather than a monetary amount upon
maturity. The purchaser will, therefore, be exposed to the issuer of such Shares and the risks
associated with such Shares. The purchaser should not assume that he or she will be able to
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sell such Shares for a specific price after the redemption of the Securities, and in particular not
for a price corresponding to the amount of capital used to purchase the Securities. Under
certain circumstances the Shares may only have a very low value or may, in fact, be worthless,
in which case see risk factor, "1.1 Purchasers of Securities may receive back less than the
original invested amount". The purchaser may also be subject to certain documentary or
stamp taxes in relation to the delivery and/or disposal of such Shares.

Risks associated with Depositary Receipts (comprising American Depositary Receipts
("ADR") and Global Depositary Receipts (""GDRs'')) as Underlying Assets

Exposure to risk that redemption amounts do not reflect direct investment in the shares
underlying the Depositary Receipts

ADRs are instruments issued in the United States of America in the form of share certificates
in a portfolio of shares held outside the USA in the country of domicile of the issuer of the
underlying shares. GDRs are also instruments in the form of share certificates in a portfolio of
shares held in the country of domicile of the issuer of the underlying shares. As a rule they are
distinguished from share certificates referred to as ADRs in that they are normally publicly
offered and/or issued outside the United States of America.

The redemption amount payable on Securities that reference Depositary Receipts may not
reflect the return a purchaser would realise if he or she actually owned the relevant shares
underlying the Depositary Receipts and received the dividends paid on those shares because
the price of the Depositary Receipts on any specified valuation dates may not take into
consideration the value of dividends paid on the underlying shares. Accordingly, purchasers in
Securities that reference Depositary Receipts as Underlying Assets may receive a lower
payment upon redemption of such Securities than such purchaser would have received if he or
she had invested in the shares underlying the Depositary Receipts directly.

Exposure to risk of non-recognition of beneficial ownership

The legal owner of shares underlying the Depositary Receipts is the custodian bank which at
the same time is the issuing agent of the Depositary Receipts. Depending on the jurisdiction
under which the Depositary Receipts have been issued and the jurisdiction to which the
custodian agreement is subject, it cannot be ruled out that the corresponding jurisdiction does
not recognise the purchaser of the Depositary Receipts as the actual beneficial owner of the
underlying shares. Particularly in the event that the custodian becomes insolvent or that
enforcement measures are taken against the custodian, it is possible that an order restricting
free disposition is issued with respect to the shares underlying the Depositary Receipts or that
these shares are realised within the framework of an enforcement measure against the
custodian. If this is the case, the purchaser of the Depositary Receipt loses the rights under the
underlying shares securitised by the Depositary Receipt. As the Depositary Receipts are an
Underlying Asset of the Securities, the Securities based on these Depositary Receipts become
worthless, in which case see risk factor, "1.1 Purchasers of Securities may receive back less
than the original invested amount".

Exposure to risk of non-distributions

The issuer of the underlying shares may make distributions in respect of their shares that are
not passed on to the purchasers of its Depositary Receipts, which can affect the value of the
Depositary Receipts and the Securities.

Exposure to adjustments to underlying shares

Following certain corporate events specified in the Base Prospectus and the relevant Final
Terms relating to the underlying shares or the relevant issuer of such underlying shares, such
as a share-for-share merger where the relevant company is not the surviving entity, the amount
purchasers of the Securities will receive, if any, at maturity of such Securities may be adjusted
by the Calculation Agent or the affected underlying shares and Depositary Receipts may be
replaced by another reference instrument. The occurrence of such corporate events and the
consequential amendments may materially and adversely affect the value of the Securities.
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Physical delivery of assets in lieu of payment of cash amounts

Where the Securities include the right of the Issuer, subject to the fulfilment of a particular
condition, to redeem the Securities at their maturity by delivering an asset to the purchaser of
such Securities, the purchasers will receive such assets rather than a monetary amount upon
maturity. The purchaser will, therefore, be exposed to the issuer of such deliverable assets and
the risks associated with such assets to be delivered. The purchaser should not assume that he
or she will be able to sell such delivered assets for a specific price after the redemption of the
Securities, and in particular not for a price corresponding to the amount of capital used to
purchase the Securities. Under certain circumstances the delivered assets may only have a very
low value or may, in fact, be worthless, in which case see risk factor, "I1.1 Purchasers of
Securities may receive back less than the original invested amount". The purchaser may also
be subject to certain documentary or stamp taxes in relation to the delivery and/or disposal of
such delivered assets.

Risks associated with Indices as Underlying Assets
Factors affecting the performance of indices

Indices are comprised of a synthetic portfolio of shares, and as such, the performance of an
Index is dependent upon the macroeconomic factors relating to the shares that underlie such
Index, such as interest and price levels on the capital markets, currency developments,
political factors as well as company-specific factors such as earnings position, market position,
risk situation, shareholder structure and distribution policy.

Exposure to risk that redemption amounts do not reflect direct investment in underlying
shares

The redemption amount payable on Securities that reference Indices may not reflect the return
a purchaser would realise if he or she actually owned the relevant shares of any of the
companies comprising the components of the Index and received the dividends paid on those
shares because the closing index level on any specified valuation dates may reflect the prices
of such index components on such dates without taking into consideration the value of
dividends paid on those shares. Accordingly, purchasers in Securities that reference Indices as
Underlying Assets may receive a lower payment upon redemption of such Securities than such
purchaser would have received if he or she had invested in the components of the Index
directly.

Change in composition or discontinuance of an Index

The sponsor of any Index can add, delete or substitute the components of such Index or make
other methodological changes that could change the level of one or more components. The
changing of components of any Index may affect the level of such Index as a newly added
company may perform significantly worse or better than the company it replaces, which in
turn may affect the payments made by the Issuer to the purchasers of the Securities. The
sponsor of any such Index may also alter, discontinue or suspend calculation or dissemination
of such Index. The sponsor of an Index will have no involvement in the offer and sale of the
Securities and will have no obligation to any purchaser of such Securities. The sponsor of an
Index may take any actions in respect of such Index without regard to the interests of the
purchasers of the Securities, and any of these actions could adversely affect the market value
of the Securities.

Risks associated with Commodities as Underlying Assets

Factors affecting the performance of Commodities (physical and contracts)

Commodities comprise physical commodities, which need to be stored and transported, and
commodity contracts, which are agreements either to buy or sell a set amount of a physical
commodity at a predetermined price and delivery period (which is generally referred to as a

delivery month), or to make and receive a cash payment based on changes in the price of the
physical commodity.
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Commodity contracts may be traded on regulated specialised futures exchanges (such as
futures contracts) or may be traded directly between market participants "over-the-counter" on
less regulated trading facilities (such as swaps and forward contracts).

The performance of commodity contracts are correlated with, but may be different to, the
performance of physical commodities. Commodity contracts are normally traded at a discount
or a premium to the spot prices of the physical commodity. The difference between the spot
prices of the physical commodities and the futures prices of the commodity contracts, is, on
one hand, due to adjusting the spot price by related expenses (warehousing, transport,
insurance, etc.) and, on the other hand, due to different methods used to evaluate general
factors affecting the spot and the futures markets. In addition, and depending on the
commodity, there can be significant differences in the liquidity of the spot and the futures
markets.

The performance of a commodity, and consequently the corresponding commodity contract, is
dependent upon various factors, including supply and demand, liquidity, weather conditions
and natural disasters, direct investment costs, location and changes in tax rates as set out in
more detail below. Commodity prices are more volatile than other asset categories, making
investments in commodities riskier and more complex than other investments.

(6))] Supply and demand - The planning and management of commodities supplies is very
time-consuming. This means that the scope for action on the supply side is limited and
it is not always possible to adjust production swiftly to take account of demand.
Demand can also vary on a regional basis. Transport costs for commodities in regions
where these are needed also affect their prices. The fact that some commodities take a
cyclical pattern, such as agricultural products which are only produced at certain times
of the year, can also result in major price fluctuations.

(i)  Liquidity - Not all commodities markets are liquid and able to quickly and adequately
react to changes in supply and demand. The fact that there are only a few market
participants in the commodities markets means that speculative investments can have
negative consequences and may distort prices.

(iii)  Weather conditions and natural disasters - Unfavourable weather conditions can
influence the supply of certain commodities for the entire year. This kind of supply
crisis can lead to severe and unpredictable price fluctuations. Diseases and epidemics
can also influence the prices of agricultural commodities.

(iv)  Direct investment costs - Direct investments in commodities involve storage, insurance
and tax costs. Moreover, no interest or dividends are paid on Commodities. The total
returns from investments in commodities are therefore influenced by these factors.

(v)  Location - Commodities are often produced in emerging market countries, with
demand coming principally from industrialised nations. The political and economic
situation is however far less stable in many emerging market countries than in the
developed world. They are generally much more susceptible to the risks of rapid
political change and economic setbacks. Political crises can affect purchaser
confidence, which can as a consequence affect commodity prices. Armed conflicts can
also impact on the supply and demand for certain commodities. It is also possible for
industrialised nations to impose embargos on imports and exports of goods and
services. This can directly and indirectly impact commodity prices. Furthermore,
numerous commodity producers have joined forces to establish organisations or cartels
in order to regulate supply and influence prices.

(vi)  Changes in tax rates - Changes in tax rates and customs duties may have a positive or
a negative impact on the profitability margins of commodities producers. When these
costs are passed on to purchasers, these changes will affect prices.

Disruption Event — Limit Prices

The disruption events referred to in the risk factor, "4.4 Postponement or alternative
provisions for valuation of Underlying Asset", include, in respect of commodities, the
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occurrence of "limit prices". U.S. futures exchanges and some foreign exchanges have
regulations that limit the amount of fluctuation in futures contract prices which may occur
during a single business day. These limits are generally referred to as "daily price fluctuation
limits" and the maximum or minimum price of a contract on any given day as a result of these
limits is referred to as a "limit price". Once the limit price has been reached in a particular
contract, trading in the contract will follow the regulations set forth by the trading facility on
which the contract is listed. Limit prices may have the effect of precluding trading in a
particular contract.

Risks associated with Commodity Indices and Commodity Strategies as Underlying Assets
Factors affecting the performance of Commodity Indices

Commodity Indices are indices which track the performance of a synthetic production-
weighted basket of commodity contracts on certain physical commodities. The level of the
Commodity Index replicates an actual investment in commodity contracts, and therefore goes
up or down depending on the overall performance of this weighted basket of commodity
contracts. Although Commodity Indices track the performance of the commodity markets, in
a manner generally similar to the way in which an index of equity securities tracks the
performance of the share market, there are important differences between a commodity index
and an equity index. First, an equity index typically weights the shares in the index based on
market capitalisation, while the commodities included in a Commodity Index are weighted
based on their world production levels and the dollar value of those levels. Second, unlike
shares, commodity contracts expire periodically and, in order to maintain an investment in
commodity contracts, it is necessary to liquidate such commodity contracts before they expire
and establish positions in longer-dated commodity contracts. This feature of a Commodity
Index, which is discussed below — see risk factor "4.13(c) Exposure to "Rolling" and its
impact on the performance of a Commodity Index", has important implications for changes in
the value of a Commodity Index. Finally, the performance of a Commodity Index is dependent
upon the macroeconomic factors relating to the commodities that underpin the commodities
contracts included in such Commodity Index, such as supply and demand, liquidity, weather
conditions and natural disasters, direct investment costs, location and changes in tax rates —
see the risk factor, "4.12(a) Factors affecting the performance of Commodities (physical and
contracts)". The performance of commodity contracts in one sector may offset the
performance of commodity contracts in another sector.

While holding an inventory of physical commodities may have certain economic benefits (for
example, a refinery could use a reserve of crude oil for the continuation of its operations), it
also poses administrative burdens and costs, including those arising from the need to store or
transport physical commodities. These requirements and costs may prove unattractive to
investors who are interested solely in the price movement of commodities. Commodity
contracts permit an investor to obtain exposure to the prices of commodities without directly
incurring these requirements and costs. However, an investor in commodity contracts, or in an
index of commodity contracts, can be indirectly exposed to these costs, which may be
reflected in the prices of the commodity contracts and therefore in the level of a Commodity
Index. In addition, the fact that commodity contracts have publicly available prices allows
calculation of an index based on these prices. The use of commodity contracts, therefore,
allows the index sponsor to separate the exposure to price changes from the ownership of the
underlying physical commodity, and thus allow participation in the upside and downside
movement of commodity prices independently of the physical commodity itself.

Exposure to risk that if the price of the underlying physical commodities increases, the level
of the Commodity Index will not necessarily also increase - redemption amounts in respect
of Securities that reference Commodity Indices do not reflect direct investment in physical
commodities or commodity contracts

If the price of the underlying physical commodities increases, the level of the Commodity
Index will not necessarily also increase, for two reasons. The redemption amount payable on
Securities that reference a Commodity Index is linked to the performance of such Commodity
Index, which in turn tracks the performance of the basket of commodity contracts included in
such Commodity Index, rather than individual physical commodities themselves. Changes in
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the prices of commodity contracts should generally track changes in the prices of the
underlying physical commodities, but, as described above, the prices of commodity contracts
might from time to time move in ways or to an extent that differ from movements in physical
commodity prices. Therefore, the prices of a particular commodity may go up but the level of
the Commodity Index may not change in the same way. Second, because commodity contracts
have expiration dates — i.e., dates upon which trading of the commodity contract ceases, there
are certain adjustments that need to be made to the Commodity Index in order to retain an
investment position in the commodity contracts. These adjustments, which are described
below and primarily include the mechanic of "rolling" may have a positive or negative effect
on the level of the Commodity Index. This feature of a Commodity Index is discussed below
— see risk factor, "Exposure to "Rolling" and its impact on the performance of a Commodity
Index". As a result, these adjustments may, in certain instances, cause a discrepancy between
the performance of the Commodity Index and the performance of the underlying commodity
contracts.  Accordingly, purchasers in Securities that reference Commodity Indices as
Underlying Assets may receive a lower payment upon redemption of such Securities than such
purchaser would have received if he or she had invested directly in commodities or a security
whose redemption amount was based upon the spot price of physical commodities or
commodity contracts that were scheduled to expire on the maturity date of the Securities.

Exposure to ""Rolling'" and its impact on the performance of a Commodity Index
@) What does ''Rolling a Commodity Contract mean?

Since any commodity contract has a predetermined expiration date on which trading of
the commodity contract ceases, holding a commodity contract until expiration will
result in delivery of the underlying physical commodity or the requirement to make or
receive a cash settlement. "Rolling" the commodity contracts means that the
commodity contracts that are nearing expiration (the "near-dated commodity
contracts") are sold before they expire and commodity contracts that have an
expiration date further in the future (the "longer-dated commodity contracts") are
bought. This would allow an actual investor to maintain an investment position
without receiving delivery of physical commodities or making or receiving a cash
settlement. As a Commodity Index replicates an actual investment in commodity
contracts, it takes into account the need to roll the commodity contracts included in
such Commodity Index. Specifically, as a near-dated commodity contract approaches
expiration, the Commodity Index is calculated as if the near-dated commodity contract
is sold and the proceeds of that sale are used to purchase a longer-dated commodity
contract of equivalent value in the next available delivery month.

(ii))  What does Backwardation mean?

When the price of the near-dated commodity contract is greater than the price of the
longer-dated commodity contract, the market for such contracts is referred to as in
"backwardation". If the rolling process occurs when the price of a commodity contract
is in backwardation, this results in a greater quantity of the longer-dated commodity
contract being acquired for the same value. Rolling contracts in a backwardated market
can affect the level of the Commodity Index.

(iii)  What does Contango mean?

When the price of the near-dated commodity contract is lower than the price of the
longer-dated commodity contract, the market for such contracts is referred to as in
"contango". If the rolling process occurs when the price of a commodity contract is in
contango, this results in a smaller quantity of the longer-dated commodity contract
being acquired for the same value. Rolling contracts in a contango market can affect
the level of the Commodity Index.

(iv)  How does Rolling affect the level of the Commodity Index

"Rolling" can affect a Commodity Index in two ways. Firstly, if the Commodity Index
synthetically owns more commodity contracts as a result of the rolling process, albeit at
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a lower price (backwardation), the gain or loss on the new positions for a given
movement in the prices of the commodity contracts will be greater than if the
Commodity Index had owned the same number of commodity contracts as before the
rolling process. Conversely, if the Commodity Index synthetically owns fewer
commodity contracts as a result of the rolling process, albeit at a higher price
(contango), the gain or loss on the new positions for a given movement in the prices of
the commodity contracts will be less than if the Commodity Index had owned the same
number of commodity contracts as before the rolling process. These differentials in the
quantities of contracts sold and purchased may have a positive or negative effect on the
level of the Commodity Index (measured on the basis of its dollar value).

Secondly, in a contango market, and in the absence of significant market changes, the
prices of the longer-dated commodity contracts which the Commodity Index
synthetically buys and holds are expected to, but may not, decrease over time as they
near expiry. The expected decrease in price of these longer-dated commodity contracts
as they near expiry can potentially cause the level of the Commodity Index to decrease.
Conversely, in a backwardated market, and in the absence of significant market
changes, the prices of the longer-dated commodity contracts are expected to, but may
not, increase over time as they near expiry. The expected increase in price of these
longer-dated commodity contracts as they near expiry can potentially cause the level of
the Commodity Index to increase.

(v)  The effects of ''Rolling'' may be mitigated

The trend in prices of the commodity contracts may mitigate the effects of rolling.
Also, as the Commodity Index includes many different types of commodity contracts,
each of those commodity contracts may be in a different type of market, either
backwardation or contango, and therefore may offset any losses and gains attributable
to rolling.

Prices of commodity contracts may change unpredictably, affecting the market price of
Securities linked to Commodity Indices in unforeseeable ways

Trading in commodities is speculative and has been and can be extremely volatile.
Commodity prices are affected by a variety of factors that are unpredictable, including,
without limitation, changes in supply and demand relationships, weather, governmental
programs and policies, national and international political, military, terrorist and economic
events, fiscal, monetary and exchange control programs, changes in interest and exchange
rates and changes, suspensions or disruptions of market trading activities in commodities and
related contracts.

These factors may affect the value of Securities linked to a Commodity Index, in varying
ways, and different factors may cause the value of different commodities underlying a
Commodity Index and the volatilities of their prices, to move in inconsistent directions and at
inconsistent rates.

Change in composition or discontinuance of a Commodity Index

A Commodity Index sponsor is responsible for the composition, calculation and maintenance
of a Commodity Index. The sponsor of a Commodity Index will have no involvement in the
offer and sale of the Securities and will have no obligation to any purchaser of such Securities.
The sponsor of a Commodity Index may take any actions in respect of such Commodity Index
without regard to the interests of the purchasers of the Securities, and any of these actions
could adversely affect the market value of the Securities.

The sponsor of any Commodity Index can add, delete or substitute the commodity contracts of
such Commodity Index or make other methodological changes that could change the
weighting of one or more commodity contracts, such as rebalancing the commodities in the
Commodity Index. The composition of a Commodity Index may change over time as
additional commodity contracts satisfy the eligibility criteria or commodity contracts currently
included in such Commodity Index fail to satisfy such criteria. Such changes to the
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composition of the Commodity Index may affect the level of such Commodity Index as a
newly added commodity contract may perform significantly worse or better than the
commodity contract it replaces, which in turn may affect the payments made by the Issuer to
the purchasers of the Securities. The sponsor of any such Commodity Index may also alter,
discontinue or suspend calculation or dissemination of such Commodity Index. In such
circumstances, the Calculation Agent would have the discretion to make determinations with
respect to the level of the Commodity Index, for the purposes of calculating the amount
payable on redemption of the Securities.

A Commodity Index may include commodity contracts that are not traded on regulated
futures exchanges

A Commodity Index may not always include exclusively of regulated futures contracts and
could at varying times include over-the-counter contracts (such as swaps and forward
contracts) traded on trading facilities that are subject to lesser degrees of regulation or, in some
cases, no substantive regulation. As a result, trading in such contracts, and the manner in
which prices and volumes are reported by the relevant trading facilities, may not be subject to
the same provisions of, and the protections afforded by, the U.S. Commodity Exchange Act of
1936, as amended, or other applicable statues and related regulations, that govern trading on
U.S. regulated futures exchanges or similar statutes and regulations that govern trading on
regulated U.K. futures exchanges. In addition, many electronic trading facilities have only
recently initiated trading and do not have significant trading histories. As a result, the trading
of contracts on such facilities and the inclusion of such contracts in a Commodity Index may
be subject to certain risks not presented by most U.S. or U.K. exchange-traded futures
contracts, including risks related to the liquidity and price histories of the relevant contracts.

Disruption Event — Continuation of calculation of Commodity Index Level by Sponsor

If a disruption event referred to in the risk factor, "4.4 Postponement or alternative provisions
for valuation of Underlying Asset", occurs with respect to any commodity contract included in
the Commodity Index, the adjustment provisions included in the terms and conditions of the
Securities will apply, including the determination by the Calculation Agent of the value of the
commodity contract and the Commodity Index on the date specified in such Securities.
However, regardless of the disruption event, the sponsor of the Commodity Index may
continue to calculate and publish the level of such Commodity Index. In such circumstances.
purchasers of the Securities should be aware that the value of the Commodity Index
determined by the Calculation Agent upon the occurrence of a disruption event may not reflect
the value of the Commodity Index as calculated and published by the sponsor of such
Commodity Index for the relevant valuation date, nor would the Calculation Agent be willing
to settle, unwind or otherwise using any such published value while a disruption event is
occurring with respect to any commodity contract included in a Commodity Index.

Factors affecting the performance of Commodity Strategies

Commodity Strategies are based on Commodity Indices but have different rules from the
Commodity Index governing the procedure by which expiring positions in certain of the
constituent commodity contracts included in the Commodity Strategy are rolled forward into
more distant contract expirations see risk factor, "4.13(c)Exposure to "Rolling" and its impact
on the performance of a Commodity Index". The purchasers of Securities that reference
Commodity Strategies should be aware that the risk factors relating to Commodity Indices
apply to such Securities, but that redemption amounts in respect of such Securities do not
reflect the performance of the Commodity Index on which the relevant Commodity Strategy is
based. In particular, the different rules governing the procedure by which expiring positions in
certain of the constituent commodity contracts included in the Commodity Strategy are rolled
forward into more distant contract expirations are likely to result in significant differences
between the performance of the Commodity Strategy and the performance of the Commodity
Index on which such Commodity Strategy is based since one component of the value of a
commodity contract is the period remaining until its expiration.
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4.15

4.16

4.17

Risk Factors

Risks associated with Foreign Exchange Rates as Underlying Assets

The performance of foreign exchange rates, currency units or units of account are dependent
upon the supply and demand for currencies in the international foreign exchange markets,
which are subject to economic factors, including inflation rates in the countries concerned,
interest rate differences between the respective countries, economic forecasts, international
political factors, currency convertibility and safety of making financial investments in the
currency concerned, speculation and measures taken by governments and central banks. Such
measures include, without limitation, imposition of regulatory controls or taxes, issuance of a
new currency to replace an existing currency, alteration of the exchange rate or exchange
characteristics by devaluation or revaluation of a currency or imposition of exchange controls
with respect to the exchange or transfer of a specified currency that would affect exchange
rates as well as the availability of a specified currency.

Risks associated with Interest Rates as Underlying Assets

The performance of interest rates is dependent upon a number of factors, including supply and
demand on the international money markets, which are influenced by measures taken by
governments and central banks, as well as speculations and possibly macroeconomic factors.

Risks associated with Inflation measurements as Underlying Assets

Where the Securities reference one or more consumer price indices or other formula linked to
a measure of inflation as Underlying Assets, the purchasers of such Securities are exposed to
the performance of such indices or other measurement formulae, which may be subject to
significant fluctuations that may not correlate with other indices and may not correlate
perfectly with the rate of inflation experienced by purchasers of the Securities in such
jurisdiction. Payments to be made under the Securities may be based on a calculation made by
reference to a consumer price index for a month which is several months prior to the date of
payment on the Securities and therefore could be substantially different from the level of
inflation at the time of the payment on the Securities.

Risks associated with Funds as Underlying Assets

Where the Securities reference one or more Funds as Underlying Assets, the purchasers of
such Securities are exposed to the performance of such Funds. The purchasers will bear the
risk that such performance cannot be predicted and purchasers should be aware that the limited
availability of last sale information and quotations for funds may make it difficult for many
purchasers to obtain timely, accurate data for the price or yield of such Funds.

The valuation of a Fund is generally controlled by the relevant fund manager or the investment
adviser (as the case may be) of the Fund. Valuations are performed in accordance with the
terms and conditions governing the Fund. Such valuations may be based upon the unaudited
financial records of the Fund and any accounts pertaining thereto. Such valuations may be
preliminary calculations of the net asset values of the Fund and accounts. The Fund may hold
a significant number of investments which are illiquid or otherwise not actively traded and in
respect of which reliable prices may be difficult to obtain. In consequence, the relevant fund
manager or the investment adviser may vary certain quotations for such investments held by
the Fund in order to reflect its judgement as to the fair value thereof. Therefore, valuations
may be subject to subsequent adjustments upward or downward. Uncertainties as to the
valuation of the fund assets and/or accounts may have an adverse effect on the net asset value
of the Fund where such judgements regarding valuations prove to be incorrect.

A Fund, and any fund components in which it may invest, may utilise (inter alia) strategies
such as short-selling, leverage, securities lending and borrowing, investment in sub-investment
grade or non-readily realisable investments, uncovered options transactions, options and
futures transactions and foreign exchange transactions and the use of concentrated portfolios,
each of which could, in certain circumstances, magnify adverse market developments and
losses. funds, and any fund components in which it may invest, may make investments in
markets that are volatile and/or illiquid and it may be difficult or costly for positions therein to
be opened or liquidated. No assurance can be given relating to the present or future
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(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Risk Factors

performance of any fund and any fund component in which it may invest. The performance of
each Fund and any fund component in which it may invest is dependent on the performance of
the fund managers in selecting fund components and the management of the relevant
component in respect of the fund components. No assurance can be given that these persons
will succeed in meeting the investment objectives of the Fund, that any analytical model used
thereby will prove to be correct or that any assessments of the short-term or long-term
prospects, volatility and correlation of the types of investments in which a Fund has or may
invest will prove accurate.

Funds may be subject not only to market price fluctuations, but also to numerous other factors
that may trigger the substitution of any relevant fund by other constituents (which may, or may
not be, another fund). Such substitution would change the profile and composition of the
Securities. If so specified in the relevant Final Terms, in the event of an occurrence of a
merger event, an insolvency, a delisting or a substitution event in respect of one or more of the
funds specified in the relevant Final Terms (the "Original Funds"), the Calculation Agent
may replace such Original Fund with an alternative investment fund (a "Replacement Fund"),
but if it is unable to select a Replacement Fund and/or a date for such substitution on the terms
described herein the Calculation Agent may replace an Original Fund or a Replacement Fund,
as applicable, with an index or a basket of indices, therefore changing the profile and
composition of the Securities.

Risks associated with baskets comprised of various constituents as Underlying Assets
Exposure to performance of basket and its underlying constituents

Where the Securities reference a basket of assets as Underlying Assets, the purchasers of such
Securities are exposed to the performance of such basket. The purchasers will bear the risk
that such performance cannot be predicted and is determined by macroeconomic factors
relating to the constituents that comprise such basket, see, as applicable, "4.9 Risks associated
with Shares as Underlying Assets", "4.11 Risks associated with Indices as Underlying Assets",
"Risks associated with Commodities as Underlying Assets", "4.14 Risks associated with
Foreign Exchange Rates as Underlying Assets", "4.15 Risks associated with Interest Rates as
Underlying Assets", "4.16 Risks associated with Inflation measurements as Underlying Assets"
and "4.17 Risks associated with Funds as Underlying Assets".

Fewer number of basket constituents

The performance of a basket that includes a fewer number of basket constituents will be more
affected by changes in the value of any particular basket constituent included therein than a
basket that includes a greater number of basket constituents.

Unequal weighting of basket constituents

The performance of a basket that gives greater weight to some basket constituents will be
more affected by changes in the value of any such particular basket constituent included
therein than a basket that gives relatively equal weight to each basket constituent.

High correlation of basket constituents could have a significant effect on amounts payable

Correlation of the basket constituents indicates the level of interdependence among the
individual basket constituents with respect to their performance. Correlation has a value
ranging from "—-1" to "+1", whereby a correlation of "+1", i.e. a high positive correlation,
means that the performance of the basket constituents always moves in the same direction. A
correlation of "—1", i.e. a high negative correlation, means that the performance of the basket
constituents is always diametrically opposed. A correlation of "0" indicates that it is not
possible to make a statement on the relationship between the basket constituents. If, for
example, all of the basket constituents originate from the same sector and the same country, a
high positive correlation can generally be assumed. Correlation may fall however, for example
when the company whose shares are included in the basket are engaged in intense competition
for market shares and the same markets. Where the Securities are subject to high correlation,
any move in the performance of the basket constituents will exaggerate the performance of the
Securities.
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Risk Factors

Negative performance of a basket constituent may outweigh a positive performance of one
or more basket constituents

Purchasers of Securities must be aware that even in the case of a positive performance of one
or more basket constituents, the performance of the basket as a whole may be negative if the
performance of the other basket constituents is negative to a greater extent.

Change in composition of basket

Where the Securities grant the Calculation Agent the right, in certain circumstances, to adjust
the composition of the basket after the Securities have been issued, the purchaser may not
assume that the composition of the basket will remain constant during the term of the
Securities. Purchasers should be aware that the replacement basket constituent may perform
differently to the outgoing basket constituent, which may have an adverse effect on the
performance of the basket.

Risks associated with the creditworthiness of the Issuers and The Goldman Sachs Group,
Inc. as the Guarantor

This risk factor applies to each of Goldman Sachs International ("GSI"), Goldman Sachs
(Jersey) Limited ("GSJ"), Goldman, Sachs & Co. Wertpapier GmbH ("GSW") and Goldman
Sachs Bank (Europe) plc ("GSBE") as Issuers under this Programme, GSI in respect of
Securities issued by GSJ and The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. ("GSG") as Guarantor in
respect of Securities issued by GSW, GSBE and issued or guaranteed by GSI. Each of the
Issuers and GSG is a member of the Goldman Sachs Group of companies, and as such may be
affected by uncertain or unfavourable economic, market, legal and other conditions that are
likely to affect the Goldman Sachs Group of companies as a whole, including GSG's ability to
perform its payment obligations as a Guarantor. The risks relating to GSG have been
incorporated by reference and can be found in "Risk Factors" in Part I, Item 1A (pages 21 to
31) of GSG's Form 10-K. Actual or anticipated changes in the credit ratings of GSG may
affect the value of a Security.

Risks associated with conflicts of interest between Goldman Sachs and purchasers of
Securities

Goldman Sachs will be subject to various conflicts of interest in respect of an issuance of
Securities as set out below:

Taking positions in or dealing with the Underlying Assets

Certain affiliates of the Issuer and the Guarantor may from time to time in the ordinary course
of business, whether or not there will be any secondary market making activities, advise the
issuer of the Underlying Assets regarding transactions to be entered into by them, or engage in
long or short transactions involving one or more Underlying Assets for their proprietary
accounts and for other accounts under their management or hold long or short positions in the
Underlying Assets or related derivatives or enter into one or more hedging transactions with
respect to the Underlying Assets or related derivatives. Any such transactions may have a
positive or negative effect on the price, liquidity or value of such Underlying Assets and
therefore on the value of the Securities to which they relate, which could be adverse to the
interests of the relevant purchasers of Securities.

Confidential information relating to the Underlying Assets and the Securities

Certain affiliates of the Issuer and the Guarantor may from time to time, by virtue of their
status as underwriter, advisor or otherwise, possess or have access to information relating to
the Securities, the Underlying Assets and any derivative instruments referencing them. Such
Goldman Sachs affiliates will not be obliged to disclose any such information to a purchaser of
the Securities.
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6.4

6.5

Risk Factors

Acting as a hedge counterparty to the Issuer's and Guarantor's obligations under the
Securities

Certain affiliates of the Issuer and the Guarantor may be the counterparty to the hedge of the
Issuer's and the Guarantor's obligations under an issue of Securities. Accordingly, certain
conflicts of interest may arise both among these affiliates and between the interests of these
affiliates and the interests of purchasers of Securities.

The Calculation Agent is an affiliate of (or the same entity as) the Issuer

As the Calculation Agent is an affiliate of the Issuer (or may be the same entity as the Issuer)
and the Guarantor, potential conflicts of interest may exist between the Calculation Agent and
the purchasers, including with respect to the exercise of the very broad discretionary powers of
the Calculation Agent. The Calculation Agent has the authority (i) to determine whether
certain specified events and/or matters so specified in the conditions relating to a series of
Securities have occurred, and (ii) to determine any resulting adjustments and calculations as
described in such conditions. Prospective purchasers should be aware that any determination
made by the Calculation Agent may have an impact on the value and financial return of the
Securities. Any such discretion exercised by, or any calculation made by, the Calculation
Agent (in the absence of manifest or proven error) shall be binding on the relevant Issuer and
all purchasers of the Securities.

Sponsor of an Underlying Asset index

The Issuer or certain affiliates of the Issuer and the Guarantor may be the sponsor of a
proprietary index which is referenced by a Security. The Index may be developed, owned,
calculated and maintained by an affiliate of the Issuer and the Guarantor, who would be
responsible for the composition, calculation and maintenance of such index. In such
circumstances, the index sponsor would be under no obligation to take into account the
interests of the purchasers of any Securities referenced by such Index. In such capacity as
index sponsor, they will have the authority to make determinations that could materially affect
the value of the Security.
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Documents Incorporated by Reference

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
1. The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

GSG files documents and information with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the
"SEC"). The following documents, which GSG has filed with the SEC, are hereby incorporated by
reference into this Base Prospectus:

@) the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended 30 November 2007 (File No. 001-
14965) (the "Form 10-K"), containing financial statements relating to the fiscal years ended
30 November 2007 and 24 November 20006;

2 the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended 29 February 2008 (the "First
Quarter Report");

3) the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended 30 May 2008 (the "Second Quarter
Report");

“) the Current Reports on Form 8-K dated 18 March 2008 and 17 June 2008; and

) Item 1 of the Proxy Statement relating to the Annual Meeting of Shareholders on 10 April
2008 (the "Proxy Statement").

GSG will provide without charge to each person to whom this Base Prospectus is delivered, upon his or
her written or oral request, a copy of any or all documents referred to above which have been
incorporated by reference into this Base Prospectus, excluding exhibits to those documents unless they
are specifically incorporated by reference into those documents. Investors can request those documents
from Investor Relations, 85 Broad Street, New York, New York 10004, telephone +1 (212) 902-0300.
In addition, such documents will be available free of charge from the Luxembourg listing agent, Dexia
Banque Internationale a Luxembourg, société anonyme, from its principal office in Luxembourg.
GSG's filings with the SEC are also available through the SEC's website at http://www.sec.gov. In
addition, the Base Prospectus and any SEC filings incorporated by reference into this Base Prospectus
will be filed with the Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier, and the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange will publish such documents on its website at http://www.bourse.lu.
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Documents Incorporated by Reference

The following table indicates where information required by the Prospectus Regulation to be disclosed
in, and incorporated by reference into, the Base Prospectus can be found in the documents referred to

above:
Information required by the Prospectus Regulation

Selected financial information for the fiscal years
ended 30 November 2007 and 24 November 2006
(Annex 1V, Section 3 of the Prospectus Regulation)

Risk factors relating to GSG (Annex IV, Section 4 of
the Prospectus Regulation)

Information about GSG

History and development of the company (Annex IV,
Section 5.1 of the Prospectus Regulation)

Investments (Annex 1V, Section 5.2 of the Prospectus
Regulation)

Business overview

GSG's principal activities (Annex 1V, Section 6.1 of the
Prospectus Regulation)

GSG's principal markets (Annex IV, Section 6.2 of the
Prospectus Regulation)

Organizational Structure (Annex 1V, Section 7 of the
Prospectus Regulation)

Trend information (Annex IV, Section 8 of the
Prospectus Regulation)

Administrative, management and supervisory bodies,
including conflicts of interest (Annex IV, Section 10 of
the Prospectus Regulation)

Audit committee (Annex IV, Section 11.1 of the
Prospectus Regulation)

Beneficial owners of more than five per cent.
Financial information

Audited historical financial information for the fiscal
years ended 30 November 2007 and 24 November
2006 (Annex 1V, Section 13.1-13.4 of the Prospectus
Regulation)

Audit report (Annex 1V, Section 13.1 of the Prospectus
Regulation)

Balance sheet (Annex 1V, Section 13.1 of the
Prospectus Regulation)

Income statement (Annex IV, Section 13.1 of the
Prospectus Regulation)
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Form 10-K (p. 174)

Form 10-K (pp. 21-31)

Form 10-K (p. 1)

Form 10-K (pp. 83-85)
First Quarter Form 10-Q (pp. 88-90)
Second Quarter Form 10-Q (pp. 84-85)

Form 10-K (pp. 1, 5-14)

Form 10-K (pp. 6-21)

Form 10-K (pp. 23-34 and Exhibit 21.1)

Form 10-K (pp. 48-54)
First Quarter Form 10-Q (pp. 60-61)
Second Quarter Form 10-Q (pp. 64-66)

Form 10-K (pp. 42-43)
Proxy Statement (pp. 5-10, 36-37)

Proxy Statement (pp. 7, 11-12, 39-40)

Proxy Statement (p. 46)

Form 10-K (pp. 106-174, F-1-F-10)

Form 10-K (p. 108)

Form 10-K (pp. 110, F-3)

Form 10-K (pp. 109, F-2)



Cash flow statement (Annex IV, Section 13.1 of the
Prospectus Regulation)

Accounting policies and explanatory notes (Annex IV,
Section 13.1 of the Prospectus Regulation)

Legal and arbitration proceedings (Annex IV, Section
13.6 of the Prospectus Regulation)

Unaudited interim historical financial information
(Annex 1V, Section 13.5 of the Prospectus Regulation)

Unaudited selected interim historical financial
information (Annex IV, Section 3 of the Prospectus
Regulation)

Accounting policies and explanatory notes for the
fiscal years ended November 24, 2006 and November
25, 2005 (Annex IV, Section 13.1(d) of the Prospectus
Regulation)

Additional information

Share capital (Annex 1V, Section 14.1 of the
Prospectus Regulation)

Credit ratings (Annex V, Section 7.5 of the Prospectus
Regulation)

Documents Incorporated by Reference

Form 10-K (pp. 112, F-4)

Form 10-K (pp. 55-63, 114-171, F-5-F-11)

Form 10-K (pp. 32-41)
First Quarter Form 10-Q (p. 108)
Second Quarter Form 10-Q (p. 118)

First Quarter Form 10-Q (pp. 2-56)
Second Quarter Form 10-Q (pp. 2-60)
Form 8-K dated 17 June 2008 (pp. 6-11)

Form 8-K dated 17 June 2008 (pp. 7-8)

Form 10-K (pp. 55-68, 114-171, F-5-F-11)

Form 10-K (pp. 110, 150-151, F-3)
First Quarter Form 10-Q (pp. 44-46)
Second Quarter Form 10-Q (pp. 47-49)

Form 10-K (pp. 101-102)
First Quarter Form 10-Q (p. 105)
Second Quarter Form 10-Q (p. 115)

Any information included in the documents incorporated by reference but not listed in the table above

is given to provide investors with additional information.

2. Goldman Sachs International

GSI files documents and information with the Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier (the
"CSSF"). The following documents, which GSI has filed with the CSSF, are hereby incorporated by

reference into this Base Prospectus;

ey
2007.

@)
2006.

The Directors' Report and Financial Statements of GSI for the period ended 30 November

The Directors' Report and Financial Statements of GSI for the period ended 24 November

Goldman Sachs International

GSI Information in the 30 November 2007 Financial 24 November 2006
Financial Statements Statements Financial Statements
Management Report pp 1-6 pp 1-8
Balance Sheet P9 p13
Profit and Loss Account p8 pll
Notes to the Financial Statements pp 10-33 pp 14-38

p7 pp 9-10

Independent Auditors' Report
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Documents Incorporated by Reference

Any information included in the documents incorporated by reference but not listed in the table above
is given to provide investors with additional information.

In addition, such documents will be available free of charge from the Luxembourg listing agent, Dexia
Banque Internationale & Luxembourg, société anonyme, from its principal office in Luxembourg. The
Luxembourg Stock Exchange will publish such documents on its website at www.bourse.lu.

3. Goldman Sachs (Jersey) Limited

GSJ files documents and information with the CSSF. The following documents, which GSJ has filed
with the CSSF, are hereby incorporated by reference into this Base Prospectus.

(1) The Directors' Report and Financial Statements of GSJ for the period ended 30 November

2007.
2) The Directors' Report and Financial Statements of GSJ for the period ended 24 November

2006.

Goldman Sachs (Jersey) Limited

GSJ Information in the 30 November 2007 Financial 24 November 2006
Financial Statements Statements Financial Statements
Management Report pp 1-2 pp 1-2
Balance Sheet p> P>
Profit and Loss Account p4 p4
Notes to the Financial Statements pp7-11 pp 7-11
Independent Auditors' Report p3 pp3

Any information included in the documents incorporated by reference but not listed in the table above
is given to provide investors with additional information.

In addition, such documents will be available free of charge from the Luxembourg listing agent, Dexia
Banque Internationale & Luxembourg, société anonyme, from its principal office in Luxembourg. The
Luxembourg Stock Exchange will publish such documents on its website at www.bourse.lu.

4. Goldman, Sachs & Co. Wertpapier GmbH

GSW files documents and information with the CSSF. The following documents, which GSW has filed
with the CSSF, are hereby incorporated by reference into this Base Prospectus:

€8 Financial Statements and Management Report for the business year from 1 December 2006 to
30 November 2007 and Auditors' Report.

2) Financial Statements and Management Report for the business year from 1 December 2005 to
30 November 2006 and Auditors' Report.

Goldman, Sachs & Co. Wertpapier GmbH

GSW Information in the 30 November 2007 Financial 30 November 2006 Financial
Financial Statements Statements Statements
pp 4-9 pp 5-10

Management Report

Balance Sheet pp 11-12 pp 13-14
Profit and Loss Account pp 13-14 pp 15-16
Cash Flow Statement pp 15-16 pp 17-18
Notes to the Financial Statements pp 17-26 pp 19-28

pp 27-30 pp 29-32

Independent Auditors' Report
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Documents Incorporated by Reference

Any information included in the documents incorporated by reference but not listed in the table above
is given to provide investors with additional information.

In addition, such documents will be available free of charge from the Luxembourg listing agent, Dexia
Banque Internationale a Luxembourg, société anonyme, from its principal office in Luxembourg. The
Luxembourg Stock Exchange will publish such documents on its website at www.bourse.lu.
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General Description of the Programme

GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAMME

Under the Programme, GSI, GSJ, GSW and GSBE, subject to compliance with all relevant laws,
regulations and directives, may from time to time issue (i) debt securities, including Fixed Rate Notes,
Floating Rate Notes, Zero Coupon Notes, Share Linked Notes, Index Linked Notes, Commodity
Linked Notes, FX Linked Notes, Other Variable Linked Notes, a combination of any of the foregoing
or any other kind of Note, and (ii) Warrants or Certificates or other similar instruments, including Share
Linked Instruments, Index Linked Instruments, Commodity Linked Instruments, FX Linked
Instruments, Other Variable Linked Instruments, or any other kind of Instrument. Securities issued by
GSI, GSW and GSBE will be guaranteed by GSG. Securities issued by GSJ will be guaranteed by
GSL

Instruments may be cleared through Euroclear, Clearstream, Euroclear France, VPS, VPC, APK,
CREST or Monte Titoli. Notes may be cleared through Euroclear, Clearstream, Euroclear France, VPS,
VPC or APK.

Subject to compliance with all applicable laws, regulations, directives and/or central bank
requirements, Notes may have any maturity and may have a denomination per Unit of less than EUR
50,000. No Notes may be issued under the Programme which have a minimum denomination of less
than EUR 1,000 (or nearly equivalent in another currency) and no Securities may be issued which carry
the right to acquire shares (or transferable securities equivalent to shares) issued by the relevant Issuer
(other than GSJ) or by any entity to whose group such Issuer belongs and which, in each case, (a) are
offered to the public or (b) admitted to trading on a regulated market un any European Economic Area
Member State.

The applicable terms of any Instruments will be set out in the General Instrument Conditions (as
completed and/or amended by any of the Specific Product Provisions (if applicable)) endorsed on, or
annexed to, the Instruments, as completed and/or amended by the applicable Final Terms attached to,
or endorsed on, such Instruments. The General Instrument Conditions are set out in detail on pages 66
to 103 and the Specific Product Provisions are set out on pages 140 to 223 of this Base Prospectus. The
applicable terms of any Notes will be set out in the General Note Conditions (as completed and/or
amended by any of the Specific Product Provisions (if applicable)) endorsed on, or annexed to, the
Notes, as completed and/or amended by the applicable Final Terms attached to, or endorsed on, such
Notes. The General Note Conditions are set out in detail on pages 104 to 139 and the Specific Product
Provisions are set out on pages 140 to 223 of this Base Prospectus.

Securities issued under the Programme may be issued pursuant to this Base Prospectus and relevant
Final Terms ("Final Terms") prepared in connection with one or more series of Securities.

Securities issued under the Programme will constitute direct, unsubordinated and unsecured obligations
of the relevant Issuer and will rank pari passu among themselves and with all other direct
unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of such Issuer.
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Commonly Asked Questions

COMMONLY ASKED QUESTIONS ABOUT THIS PROGRAMME

List of Questions

10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.
22.
23.
24.
25.
26.
217.
28.

29.

What type of securities can be issued under this programme?

What type of underlying assets may be linked to a security?

What documents do I need to read in respect of an issuance of securities?
What information is included in this Base Prospectus?

What information is included in the Final Terms?

Who are the issuers under this programme?

Who are the guarantors under this programme?

Who can purchase securities under this programme?

Is there a minimum denomination or trading size?

Who are the "holders" of securities?

What rights do holders have against an issuer?

How is ownership of the securities recorded?

What does an investor have to do to exercise his or her rights in respect of the securities?
How are payments made to investors?

What if the securities are not held by a clearing system?

When are payments made to investors?

Who calculates the amounts payable to investors?

What further determinations may the calculation agent have to make?

Are the calculation agent's determinations binding on investors?

Will investors be able to sell their securities?

What will be the price of the securities in such circumstances?

Are there any fees, expenses or taxes to pay when purchasing, holding or selling securities?
Can the issuer redeem the securities before their stated maturity?

Can the issuer amend the conditions of securities once they have been issued?
How much of an investment is at risk?

What are share linked securities?

What are index linked securities?

What are commodity linked securities?

What are foreign exchange rate linked securities?
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Commonly Asked Questions

1. What type of securities can be issued under this programme?

Under this programme, each of the issuers may issue different types of debt securities, namely warrants
and certificates, which are collectively known as "instruments", and notes, which together with
instruments are collectively known as "securities". The securities may have any maturity. Certain
instruments may be open-ended and will only be redeemable at the option of the relevant issuer. The
securities may be listed and traded on a regulated market, or not listed or traded; they may or may not
be rated, they may bear no interest or bear fixed or floating rate interest or bear interest that will be
linked to the performance of one or more underlying assets, in each case, depending on the type of
securities and investor demand.

2. What type of Underlying Assets may be linked to a security?

The interest and/or repayment terms of the securities issued under this programme may be linked to a
number of different underlying assets, which may include:

. a share

U an index

. a commodity

. a commodity index or strategy

. a foreign exchange rate

U a fund

. a consumer price or other inflation index

° any other financial, economic or other measures or instruments including the occurrence or

non-occurrence of any event or circumstance and credit events relating to one or more issuers
or securities

U baskets of the above, or
. any other combination of any of the above.

More information about the most common types of underlying assets is set out below at questions 26 to
29.

3. What documents do I need to read in respect of an issuance of securities?

There are several legal documents that an investor must read in respect of each trade: (i) this Base
Prospectus (including the documents incorporated by reference) and (ii) the Final Terms in respect of
such trade.

4. What information is included in this Base Prospectus?

This Base Prospectus discloses financial and other information about each issuer and, if applicable, the
guarantor, of such securities and incorporates by reference further financial information about such
entities. Such documents incorporated by reference into this Base Prospectus are available to investors
by request from Investor Relations, 85 Broad Street, New York, New York 10004, telephone +1 (212)
902-0300 and from the Luxembourg listing agent, Dexia Banque Internationale a Luxembourg at its
office at 69 route d'Esch, L-2953 Luxembourg, Grand Duché de Luxembourg and the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange will also publish such documents on its website at http://www.bourse.lu.

This Base Prospectus also discloses restrictions about who can buy such securities and risk factors
relating to securities issued under this programme.
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This Base Prospectus also contains the general terms and conditions of all instruments in the section
called "General Instrument Conditions" and the general terms and conditions of all notes in the section
called "General Note Conditions". The General Instrument Conditions and the General Note Conditions
may be completed and/or amended by Specific Product Provisions, which relate to the most popular
types of underlying assets, namely the Share Linked Provisions, the Index Linked Provisions, the
Commodity Linked Provisions and the FX Linked Provisions.

5. What information is included in the Final Terms?

While the Base Prospectus includes general information about all securities, the Final Terms is the
document that sets out the specific details of each particular issuance of securities. The Final Terms
will contain, for example, the issue date, the maturity date and the methods used to calculate the
redemption amount and any interest payments, if applicable.

The Final Terms will specify which, if any, of the Specific Product Provisions apply to an issuance of
securities, and will complete and/or amend the General Instrument Conditions and the General Note
Conditions, as applicable, and any such Specific Product Provisions. Therefore, the Final Terms must
be read in conjunction with this Base Prospectus.

6. Who are the issuers under this programme?

The issuers of securities under this programme are Goldman Sachs International, Goldman Sachs
(Jersey) Limited, Goldman, Sachs & Co. Wertpapier GmbH and Goldman Sachs Bank (Europe) plc.

Goldman Sachs International is an international investment banking organisation, incorporated in
England, regulated by the Financial Services Authority and an authorised person under the Financial
Services and Markets Act 2000 of the United Kingdom. The ultimate parent company of Goldman
Sachs International is The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

Goldman Sachs (Jersey) Limited is a public company with limited liability incorporated in Jersey for
the purpose of issuing securities and entering into the contractual arrangements contemplated in this
Base Prospectus, and is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Goldman Sachs International.

Goldman, Sachs & Co. Wertpapier GmbH is a company with limited liability incorporated in Germany
for the purpose of issuing securities and entering into the contractual arrangements contemplated in this
Base Prospectus, and is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

Goldman Sachs Bank (Europe) plc is a public company with limited liability incorporated in Ireland for
the purpose of carrying on the business of banking, and is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Goldman
Sachs Group, Inc.

7. Who are the guarantors under this programme?

The payment and delivery obligations of Goldman Sachs (Jersey) Limited are guaranteed by Goldman
Sachs International. The payment, delivery and guarantee (where applicable) obligations of Goldman
Sachs International, Goldman, Sachs & Co. Wertpapier GmbH and Goldman Sachs (Bank) Europe plc
are guaranteed by The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., who has the right in its sole and unfettered
discretion to discharge any delivery obligation by payment of a physical settlement disruption amount
instead of delivery of the deliverable assets.

The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. is a U.S. corporation established under the laws of Delaware and,
together with its consolidated subsidiaries, is a leading global investment banking, securities and
investment management firm that provides a wide range of services worldwide to a substantial and
diversified client base that includes corporations, financial institutions, governments and high-net-
worth individuals.

8. Who can purchase securities under this programme?

A potential purchaser must hold an appropriate account enabling his or her interest in the securities to
be recorded, and can only purchase securities in compliance with the applicable regulations. The
offering, sale and delivery of the securities in certain jurisdictions may be restricted by law. Persons
into whose possession this Base Prospectus or any Final Terms comes are required by the issuers and
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the guarantors to inform themselves about and to observe any such restrictions. Some, but not all, of the
selling restrictions are highlighted below:

(a) securities may not be offered, sold or delivered within the United States or to U.S. persons (as
defined in Regulation S under the Securities Act), except pursuant to an exemption from, or in
a transaction not subject to, the registration requirements of the Securities Act and applicable
state securities laws;

(b) an instrument, but not a note, may be offered and sold within the United States by GSI only
exclusively to qualified institutional buyers (as defined in Rule 144A under the Securities Act)
in reliance on the exemption provided by Rule 144A under the Securities Act;

() warrants relating to commodities may not be offered, sold or resold in or into the United States
absent an applicable exemption under the Commodity Exchange Act;

(d) rights arising under the securities will be exercisable by the holder of securities only upon
certification as to non-U.S. beneficial ownership, unless the Final Terms relating to an
instrument expressly provides otherwise in connection with an offering of the instrument by
GSI only pursuant to Rule 144 A under the Securities Act; and

(e) securities may not be offered to, or sold to or purchased by persons resident for income tax
purposes in Jersey (other than financial institutions in the ordinary course of business), unless
the Jersey authorities are satisfied that the beneficial owner thereof is not resident in Jersey for
income tax purposes.

9. Is there a minimum denomination or trading size?

The minimum denomination of a note, which is to be admitted to trading on a regulated stock
exchange, or which is to be offered to the public in a member state of the European Economic Area and
is subject to the requirement of the publication of a prospectus in accordance with the Prospectus
Directive and which is issued by an issuer other than GSJ will be Euro 1,000 (or an equivalent amount
in any other currency). Otherwise, there is no requirement for a minimum denomination.

In order to purchase some securities, there may be a minimum amount that need to be invested, and
there may be minimum trading amounts.

10. Who are the "holders' of securities?

The expression "holders" refers to those who are shown in the records of the clearing systems as the
holder of an amount of securities. Accordingly, only those who have an account at a clearing system
will be holders and only holders have direct rights against the issuer. Holders do not include investors
who own securities indirectly (for example through a selling agent). Investors who hold only the
beneficial interests in the securities must exercise their rights through the intermediary.

11. What rights do holders have against an issuer?

Securities issued under the programme will constitute direct, unsubordinated and unsecured obligations
of the relevant issuer and will rank equally among themselves and with all other direct unsubordinated
and unsecured obligations of such issuer.

A holder's rights may include the right to have the principal amount of securities repaid by such issuer
at maturity, the right to receive interest based on the principal amount of such securities or otherwise,
the right to receive a cash amount from the relevant issuer calculated in accordance with the relevant
Final Terms or the right to receive delivery of a specified asset or assets against payment of a specified
sum, all as more particularly described in the relevant Final Terms.

Upon insolvency of the issuer, holders of the securities will be paid at the same time as holders of other
unsecured obligations of the issuer and will be paid after preferred obligations (for example, secured
creditors). If the issuer is unable to repay amounts due to holders, each holder will be treated equally
with all other holders who own unsecured securities issued by the issuer, but will be entitled to claim
for any shortfalls in amounts owed but unpaid by the issuer against the applicable guarantor.
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An investor who purchases securities is therefore relying on the creditworthiness of the guarantor as
they will ultimately be able to recover any investment in the securities to the extent that the guarantor is
able to repay those amounts. The guarantor's creditworthiness and ability to fulfil its obligations in
respect of the securities are affected by general economic conditions and other business conditions.

For a discussion of certain factors affecting the guarantor's business, see "Risk Factors" in Part I, Item
1A (pages 21 to 31) of GSG's 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K, which is incorporated by reference
into this Base Prospectus.

12. How is ownership of the securities recorded?

An investor will not receive a certificate representing his or her interest. Subject as provided below,
each series of securities will be issued in the form of a global security with one global security
representing all of the holders' interests in respect of an entire series of securities. Each global security
will be deposited at, and transfers of interest therein will be facilitated between, the relevant clearing
systems (being any of Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg, Euroclear France or other domestic
systems (as applicable)). Securities held through CREST, Monte Titoli, VPS, VPC or APK will be
dematerialised and there will be no global security in respect of such securities. Transfers of such
securities will be through book entries at such clearing system. Selling agents will hold an interest in
the securities through a clearing system on behalf of the investors, with whom they will have an
arrangement in respect of such securities.

13. What investors have to do to exercise their rights in respect of the securities?

Investors' rights relating to the securities are governed by the procedures of the relevant clearing
systems. As only the holders of the securities can exercise any right to early repayment of the
Securities, an investor wanting any such right to early repayment to be exercised on his or her behalf
must contact his or her selling agent through which he or she holds his or her interest for details of how
to give notice.

The investor should ensure proper and timely instructions are given to the selling agent requesting that
it notify the holder to exercise the repayment right on his or her behalf.

14. How are payments made to investors?

The issuer will make payments of interest and principal or settlement amounts by paying the total
amount payable to the clearing system(s), who will credit the appropriate amount to the account of each
holder (which may include selling agents), in each case, in accordance with the rules and policies of the
clearing system(s). Each investor in the securities must look to its selling agent for payments on such
investor's securities. The issuer has no obligation to make payments directly to investors in securities.

If a date specified for payment is not a business day, then the issuer will make the relevant payment on
the first following day that is a business day. On these occasions, the payment will be treated as if it
were made on the original specified date for payment and will not be considered a late payment.
Accordingly, the issuer will not pay an additional interest amount for the postponement.

15. What if the securities are not held by a clearing system?

For securities not held by a clearing system, the "holder" will be the investor shown on the register (in
the case of registered securities) or the investor who physically holds the security (in the case of bearer
notes). To receive payment of principal and/ or interest, the investor will need to contact the registrar
(in the case of registered securities) or the paying agent (for bearer notes) and present evidence of its
holding of the security. The issuer will not make payments to the investors directly but will do so
through the paying agents.

16. When are payments made to investors?
Each type of security purchased will have a different repayment date or settlement date. Securities that

bear interest (either interest accrued at a fixed or floating rate or interest calculated by reference to an
underlying asset) will also have interest payment dates.
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17. Who calculates the amounts payable to investors?

Unless otherwise specified in the relevant Final Terms, Goldman Sachs International will act as the
calculation agent in respect of securities issued under this programme, and in such capacity, will
determine the performance levels of the underlying asset(s) on specified valuation dates and will
determine any interest amounts and the redemption amounts and/or physical settlement amounts
payable or deliverable by the issuer to the holders of such securities. In the event that a disruption event
has occurred in respect of an underlying asset on a specified valuation date which renders it impossible
for the calculation agent to make a determination on such date, the valuation may be postponed to an
alternative date.

In the event that the performance of an issuer's obligations under the securities shall have become
unlawful in whole or in part as a result of compliance in good faith by such issuer with any applicable
present or future applicable law or regulation, which results in the early termination of the securities,
the calculation agent will determine the non-scheduled early repayment amount of such securities as
representing quotations based upon fair market valuations of such securities immediately prior to such
termination (ignoring such illegality).

18. What further determinations may the calculation agent have to make?

The terms and conditions of the securities (comprising the General Instrument Conditions or the
General Note Conditions, as applicable, and any relevant Specific Product Provisions as completed
and/or amended by the Final Terms) also provide that the calculation agent is the entity responsible for
determining whether certain events have occurred (some of which are mentioned above), and in
circumstances where such events have occurred, whether the terms and conditions of the securities
need to be amended to reflect such events. A non-exhaustive summary of some events is set out below:

(a) Market Disruption Event — any event that means the value of the Underlying Asset(s) cannot
be determined in the regular manner, for example, the exchange on which the relevant shares
trade has closed early or been disrupted or the index sponsor or commodities exchange has
failed to publish the reference level;

(b) Potential Adjustment Event or Extraordinary Event (in respect of the Share Linked Provisions)
— any event that results in significant changes to the nature of the shares, including a
reclassification, an extraordinary dividend, a delisting of shares, a merger event or a
nationalisation;

(©) Index Adjustment Event (in respect of the Index Linked Provisions) — any event that results in
(i) a material non-prescribed modification of the composition of an index, (ii) the cancellation
of an index, which is then not replaced, and (iii) the non-publication of an index level (though
this may be a Market Disruption Event);

(d) Change in Law — a change in law which materially increases the Issuer's costs of performing
its obligations under the Securities;

(e) FX Disruption Event — an event that makes conversion of specified and settlement currencies
impossible; and

) Physical Settlement Disruption Event - any event that has occurred as a result of which, in the
opinion of the calculation agent, the relevant issuer cannot, or it is commercially impracticable
for such issuer to effect physical settlement of all or any of the deliverable assets in
satisfaction of the issuer's obligation to pay a rede